

# **Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan - Series 42**

(A 36 Month Close ended Income Scheme)

# **Scheme Information Document (SID)**

#### This product is suitable for investors who are seeking\*:

- Income over medium to long term
- Investment in Debt and Money Market Instruments

\*Investors should consult their financial advisers if in doubt about whether the product is suitable for them.



Investors understand that their principal will be at Moderate risk

Offer of Units of Rs. 10/- each during the New Fund Offer Period NEW FUND OFFER OPENS ON: April 12, 2017 NEW FUND OFFER CLOSES ON: April 17, 2017

\*As the Scheme is a close ended scheme, it will not provide redemption facility until the Maturity Date/Final Redemption Date. The Units of the Scheme will be listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). Investor can purchase/ sell Units on a continuous basis on the Stock Exchange(s) on which the Units are listed.

The particulars of the Scheme have been prepared in accordance with The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 (herein after referred to as SEBI (MF) Regulations) as amended till date, and filed with SEBI, along with a Due Diligence Certificate from the AMC. The Units being offered for public subscription have not been approved or recommended by SEBI nor has SEBI certified the accuracy or adequacy of the Scheme Information Document.

#### NSE Disclaimer

"As required, a copy of this Scheme Information Document has been submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter referred to as NSE). NSE has given vide its letter NSE/LIST/100781 dated January 16, 2017 permission to the Mutual Fund to use the Exchange's name in this Scheme Information Document as one of the stock exchanges on which the Mutual Fund's units are proposed to be listed subject to, the Mutual Fund fulfilling various criteria for listing. The Exchange has scrutinized this Scheme Information Document for its limited internal purpose of deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to the Mutual Fund. It is to be distinctly understood that the aforesaid permission given by NSE should not in any way be deemed or construed that the Scheme Information Document has been cleared or approved by NSE; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Scheme Information Document; nor does it warrant that the Mutual Fund's units will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; nor does it take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of the Mutual Fund, its sponsors, its management or any scheme of the Mutual Fund.

Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any units of the Mutual Fund may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with such subscription / acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or any other reason whatsoever."

The Scheme Information Document sets forth concisely the information about the Scheme that a prospective investor ought to know before investing. Before investing, investors should also ascertain about any further changes to this Scheme Information Document incorporated after the date of this Document from the Mutual Fund / Investor Service Centres / Website / Distributors or Brokers.

The investors are advised to refer to the Statement of Additional Information (SAI) for details of Edelweiss Mutual Fund, Tax and Legal issues and general information on www.edelweissmf.com.

This Document should be read in its entirety before making application and should be retained for future reference.

Edelweiss Mutual Fund / Edelweiss Asset Management Limited and its empanelled distributors have not given and shall not give any indicative portfolio and/or indicative yield of the Scheme in any of their communication in any manner whatsoever. Investors are advised not to rely on any communication regarding indicative portfolio/yield with regard to the Scheme.

SAI is incorporated by reference (is legally a part of the Scheme Information Document). For a free copy of the current SAI, please contact your nearest Investor Service Centre or log on to our website www.edelweissmf.com.

The Scheme Information Document should be read in conjunction with the SAI and not in isolation.

#### NAME OF MUTUAL FUND

#### **Edelweiss Mutual Fund**

Tower 3, Wing B, Ground Floor, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla(W), Mumbai – 400070, Maharashtra www.edelweissmf.com

#### TRUSTEE:

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited (CIN: U67100MH2007PLC173779) Corporate Office: Tower 3, Wing B, Ground Floor, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla(W), Mumbai – 400070, Maharashtra

**Registered Office:** Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai 400 098

#### **SPONSOR:**

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai- 400 098 www.edelweissfin.com

#### **INVESTMENT MANAGER:**

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited (CIN: U65991MH2007PLC173409) Corporate Office: Tower 3, Wing B, Ground Floor, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla(W), Mumbai – 400070, Maharashtra

**Registered Office:** Edelweiss House, Off. C.S.T Road, Kalina, Mumbai 400098 www.edelweissfin.com

#### **REGISTRAR:**

Karvy Computershare Private Limited Unit - Edelweiss Mutual Fund Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 500 008, Tel:040-67161500

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS – SUMMARY OF THE SCHEME	1
I. INTRODUCTION	5
A. RISK FACTORS:	5
B. REQUIREMENT OF MINIMUM INVESTORS IN THE SCHEME	7
C. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS	7
D. DEFINITIONS & ABBREVIATIONS	8
E. DUE DILIGENCE BY THE ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY	12
II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE SCHEME	13
A. NAME & TYPE OF SCHEME	13
B. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE	13
C. ASSET ALLOCATION AND INVESTMENT PATTERN	13
D. WHERE WILL THE SCHEME INVEST?	15
E. INVESTMENT STRATEGY & APPROACH	17
F. FUNDAMENTAL ATTRIBUTES	22
G. BENCHMARK	23
H. FUND MANAGER FOR THE SCHEME	23
I. INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	24
J. SCHEME PERFORMANCE	27
K. INVESTMENT OF SUBSCRIPTION MONEY	27
L. INDIAN DEBT MARKETS - PILLARS OF THE INDIAN ECONOMY	27
M. INVESTMENT BY THE AMC	28
N. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES	28
III. UNITS & OFFER	29
A. NEW FUND OFFER (NFO)	29
B. ONGOING OFFER DETAILS	41
C. PERIODIC DISCLOSURES & OTHER INFORMATION	46
D. COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	50
IV. FEES AND EXPENSES	51
A. NEW FUND OFFER (NFO) EXPENSES	51
B. ANNUAL SCHEME RECURRING EXPENSES	51
C. LOAD STRUCTURE	54
D. TRANSACTION CHARGES	54
E. WAIVER OF LOAD FOR DIRECT APPLICATIONS	55
V. RIGHTS OF UNIT HOLDERS	56
VI. PENALTIES, PENDING LITIGATION OR PROCEEDINGS, FINDINGS OF INSPECTIONS	
INVESTIGATIONS FOR WHICH ACTION MAY HAVE BEEN TAKEN OR IS IN THE PROCES	S

OF BEING TAKEN BY ANY REGULATORY AUTHORITY.

#### HIGHLIGHTS – SUMMARY OF THE SCHEME

Name of the Scheme	Edelweiss F	ixed Maturity Plar	– Series 42			
		Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan – Series 42				
<b>T</b> (1) (1)						
Type of the Scheme	A 36 Month Close ended Income Scheme					
Investment Objective	The investment objective of the Scheme is to generate income through investment in Debt / Money Market Instruments and Government Securities maturing on or before the Maturity Date of the Scheme.					
	Scheme wil	However, there is no assurance that the investment objective of the Scheme will be realized and the Scheme does not assure or guarantee any returns.				
Suitable for	returns in c	Investors with a fixed investment time horizon for potentially higher returns in comparison to liquid funds or traditional bank deposits with similar maturity.				
Duration/Maturity of the Plan(s)			n – Series 42 is a ure on May 4, 202	a 36 Month Close 0.	ended	
		If such a Maturity Date is a non-Business Day, the subsequent Business Day shall be considered as the Maturity Date for the Scheme.				
Scheme Plans	In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/21/2012 dated September 13, 2012, direct investments by investors, viz. where the investment is not routed through distributors but made directly by the investors, are required to have a separate plan (i.e. Direct Plan) and a separate NAV. Expenses such as distribution expenses, brokerage or commission payable to distributors will not be charged to the investment made via direct investment and hence the Direct Plan will have a lower expense ratio.					
	<ul><li>Based on the above, the Scheme offers a choice of two plans:</li><li>1. Direct Plan; and</li><li>2. Regular Plan</li></ul>					
	Investors subscribing under Direct Plan of the Scheme will have to indicate "Direct Plan" against the Scheme name in the application form i.e. "Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan - Series 42 - Direct Plan". Investors should also indicate "Direct" in the ARN column of the application form.					
	If the application is received incomplete with respect to not selecting Regular/Direct Plan, the application will be processed as under:					
	ScenarioBrokerCodePlanDefaultPlanmentioned by the investormentioned by the investorto be captured					
	1	Not mentioned	Not mentioned	Direct Plan		
	2	Not mentioned	Direct	Direct Plan		
	3	Not mentioned	Regular	Direct Plan		
	4	Mentioned	Direct	Direct Plan		

	5	Direct	Not mentioned	Direct Plan	
	6 7	Direct Mentioned	Regular	Direct Plan	
	8	Mentioned	Regular Not mentioned	Regular Plan Regular Plan	
	8	Mentioned	Not mentioned	Regular Plati	l
	In cases of wrong/ invalid/ incomplete ARN codes mentioned on the application form, the application shall be processed under Regular Plan. The AMC shall contact and obtain the correct ARN code within 30 calendar days of the receipt of the application form from the investor/ distributor. In case, the correct code is not received within 30 calendar days, the AMC shall reprocess the transaction under Direct Plan from the date of application without any exit load.				
Options/Sub-options	Each Plan	under the Scheme	e offers a choice of t	wo options:	
	• G	rowth Option			
	• D	ividend Option			
		•	n, no dividend wil lend Payout Facility		nd the
Default Option	If the investor does not clearly specify the choice of Option at the time of investing, the Units of the Scheme will be allotted in the Growth Option of the Scheme.				
Minimum Application Amount	Minimum of Rs. 5,000/- and in multiples of Re. 10/- thereafter per application which includes switch-ins from other Schemes of the Edelweiss Mutual Fund.				
Redemption / Repurchase	Maturity I to exit main the stock	Date/Final Redem y do so, only in de	e of units shall be ption Date of the So emat mode, by sellin re the Scheme is lis	cheme. Investors v ng through NSE or	vishing any of
	Scheme shall be fully redeemed at the end of its tenure. The Mutual Fund will dispatch the Redemption proceeds within 10 (Ten) Business Days from the date of maturity of the Scheme; in line with the current regulatory timelines.				
Target Amount to be raised during the NFO	Minimum	of Rs. 20 Crore.			
Dematerialization (Demat)	The Unit holders will have an Option to hold the units by way of an Account Statement or in Dematerialized ('Demat') form. Unit holders opting to hold the units in Demat form must provide their Demat Account details in the specified section of the application form. The Unit holders intending to hold the units in Demat form are required to have a beneficiary account with a Depository Participant (DP) (registered with NSDL / CDSL as may be indicated by the Fund at the time of launch of the Scheme) and will be required to indicate in the application the DP's name, DP ID Number and the beneficiary account number of the applicant held with the DP at the time of subscribing to the Units during the NFO of the Scheme. The Units of the Scheme will be traded and settled on the Stock Exchange compulsorily in demat form.				

	In case Unit holders do not provide their demat account details or the demat details provided in the application form are incomplete / incorrect or do not match with the details with the Depository records, the Units will be allotted in account statement mode provided the application is otherwise complete in all respect and accordingly an account statement shall be sent to them. Such investors will not be able to sell the Units on the stock exchange till the Units are converted in to demat (electronic) form.
Fund Manager	Mr. Swayam Mangwani (Managing the Scheme since inception of the Scheme)
New Fund Offer Price	The units will have a face value of Rs. 10/- each.
Load	*Entry Load : Not Applicable
	**Exit Load: Nil
	* No entry load will be charged for purchase / switch-in transaction(s) accepted by the Fund. The upfront commission on investment made by the investor shall be paid by the investor directly to the ARN Holder based on the investor's assessment of various factors including service rendered by the ARN Holder.
	**The Scheme being a closed-ended, Units under the respective Plan(s) cannot be redeemed directly with the Mutual Fund until the Maturity Date. Investors holding Units in demat mode and wishing to exit may do so through the Stock Exchanges where the Scheme is listed. Investors shall note that the brokerage on transactions of the units of the Schemes on the stock exchanges shall be borne by the investors
	The AMC / Trustee Company reserve the right to revise the load structure from time to time. Such changes will become effective prospectively from the date such changes are incorporated.
	For more details on load structure, please refer Section on "Load Structure" in this Document.
Transaction Charges	In accordance with SEBI circular no. Cir/IMD/DF/13/2011 dated August 22, 2011, the AMC will deduct Transaction Charges on purchase/subscription of Rs.10,000/- and above made through a valid ARN Holder i.e. AMFI registered distributors/ intermediaries, provided such distributor has opted to receive the Transaction Charges. Such Transaction Charges collected by the AMC will be paid to the ARN Holder through whom the investment has been made. However, no Transaction Charges will be imposed for investments made directly with the Fund. For more details on Transaction Charges, please refer the Section on "Transaction Charges" in this Document.
Benchmark Index	CRISIL Composite Bond Fund Index
Whether SIP/STP/SWP Facility available	Not Available
Liquidity	The Units of the Scheme cannot be redeemed by the Unit holders directly with the Fund until the Maturity Date and there will be redemption by the Fund on the maturity of the Scheme.
	reachiption by the rand on the maturity of the scheme.

	Scheme before the Maturity Date/Final Redemption Date may do so through the Stock Exchanges where the Scheme is listed.
	The Units of the Scheme will be listed on the Capital Market segment of the NSE. The AMC/Trustee may at its sole discretion list the Units under the Scheme on any other recognized Stock Exchange at a later date.
	The Units of the Scheme can be purchased / sold on a continuous basis on NSE and/or any other stock exchange on which the Units are listed during the trading hours like any other publicly traded stock. The price of the Units on the Stock Exchange(s) will depend on demand and supply at that point of time and underlying NAV. There is no minimum investment limit, although the Units are normally traded in a round lot of 1 Unit.
Transparency/NAV Disclosure	The AMC will calculate and disclose the first NAV within the timelines stipulated under the Regulations from the closure of the New Fund Offer Period. Subsequently, the NAV will be calculated and disclosed on every Business Day. NAV shall be published at least in two daily newspapers. NAV will also be updated on the website of the AMC (www.edelweissmf.com) and on the AMFI website (www.amfiindia.com). The NAVs will be normally updated on the websites before 9.00 p.m. on every Business Day. In case of any delay, the reasons for such delay would be explained to AMFI by the next day. If the NAVs are not available before commencement of working hours on the following day due to any reason, the Fund shall issue a press release providing reasons and explaining when the Fund would be able to publish the NAV.
	The AMC shall disclose full portfolio of the Scheme (along with the ISIN) as on the last day of the month, on its website, on or before the 10 <sup>th</sup> day of the succeeding month.
	The NAV will be calculated in the manner as provided in this SID or as may be prescribed by the SEBI Regulations from time to time. The NAV will be computed up to four decimal places.
	In accordance with the Regulations, the AMC will disclose details of the portfolio at least on a half-yearly basis within one month from the close of each half year (i.e. 31st March and 30th September) either by sending a complete statement to all the Unit holders or by publishing the same by way of advertisement in one national English daily newspaper in the whole of India and in a newspaper published in the language of the region where the Head Office of the Mutual Fund is located. The Mutual Fund shall disclose the full portfolio of Scheme at least on a half-yearly basis on the website of AMC and AMFI.
	The AMC will make available the Annual Report of the Scheme within four months of the end of the financial year.
Roll Over Facility	At the time of maturity, if it is perceived that the market outlook for the similar securities/ instruments is positive and investment in the similar kind of instruments would likely to fetch better returns for the investors, then in the interest of the Investor, the Trustees may decide to roll-over the schemes. This would be based on demand/request of the investors for the same. All other material details of the Scheme including the likely composition of assets immediately before the roll over, the net assets and net asset value of the scheme, will be disclosed to the unit holders and a copy of the same will be filed with SEBI. Such rollover will be permitted only in case of those unit holders who express their consent in writing.

#### INTRODUCTION

Ι.

#### A RISK FACTORS:

Apart from the risk factors mentioned in SAI, following are some of the additional risk factors which investors are advised to go through before investing:

#### a) STANDARD RISK FACTORS:

- Investment in Mutual Fund Units involves investment risks such as trading volumes, settlement risk, liquidity risk, default risk including the possible loss of principal.
- Mutual funds and securities investments are subject to market risks and there is no assurance or guarantee against loss in the Scheme or that the Scheme's objective will be achieved.
- \* As the price / value / interest rates of the securities in which the Scheme invests fluctuates, the value of your investment in the Scheme may go up or down depending on various factors and forces affecting the capital markets.
- Past performance of the Sponsor/AMC/Mutual Fund does not guarantee future performance of the Scheme.
- Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan Series 42 is only the name of the Scheme & it does not in any manner indicate either the quality of the Scheme or its future prospects and returns.
- \* The sponsor is not responsible or liable for any loss resulting from the operation of the Scheme beyond the initial contribution of Rs.1,00,000 made by it towards setting up the Fund.
- \* The present Scheme is not a guaranteed or assured return Scheme.

#### b) SCHEME SPECIFIC RISK FACTORS:

The performance of the Scheme may be affected by changes in Government policies, general levels of interest rates and risks associated with trading volumes, liquidity and settlement systems, etc. Some of the risks are listed below:

#### 1. Risks Associated with Fixed Income and Money Market Instruments:

- \* Interest rate risk: Price of a fixed income instrument falls when the interest rates move up and vice- versa, which will affect the NAV accordingly.
- Spread risk: Investments in corporate bonds are exposed to the risk of widening of the spread between corporate bonds and gilts. Prices of corporate bonds tend to fall if this spread widens which will affect the NAV of the Scheme accordingly.
- \* **Credit risk or default risk:** Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debenture/ bond or a money market instrument may default on interest &/or principal payment obligations.
- \* Liquidity Risk: The Risk of non execution of sale/purchase order due to low volumes is liquidity risk.
- Reinvestment risk: Interest rates may vary from time to time. The rate at which intermediate cash flows are reinvested may differ from the original interest rates on the security, which can affect the total earnings from the security.
- \* **Performance Risk:** Performance of the Scheme may be impacted with changes in factors, which affect the capital market and in particular the debt market.
- \*
- \* Market risk: Lower rated or unrated securities are more likely to react to developments affecting the market as they tend to be more sensitive to changes in economic conditions than higher rated securities.

#### 2. Risks associated with investment in Derivatives:

Derivative products are leveraged instruments and can provide disproportionate gains as well as disproportionate losses to the investor. Execution of such strategies depends upon the ability of the

fund manager to identify such opportunities. Identification and execution of the strategies to be pursued by the fund manager involve uncertainty and decision of Fund Manager may not always be profitable. No assurance can be given that the Fund Manager will be able to identify or execute such strategies.

The risks associated with the use of derivatives are different from or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other traditional investments.

#### Trading in derivatives has the following risks:

a. An exposure to derivatives in excess of the hedging requirements can lead to losses.

b. An exposure to derivatives can also limit the profits from a genuine investment transaction.

c. Efficiency of a derivatives market depends on the development of a liquid and efficient market for the underlying securities.

- d. Derivatives carry the risk of adverse changes in the market price.
- e Illiquidity Risk i.e. risk that a derivative trade cannot be executed or reversed quickly enough at a fair price, due to lack of liquidity in the market.

The Fund may use derivative instruments as permitted under the Regulations and guidelines. Usage of derivatives will expose the Scheme to liquidity risk, open position risk, and opportunities risk etc. Such risks include the risk of mispricing or improper valuation and the inability of derivatives to correlate perfectly with underlying assets, rates and indices. Debt derivatives instruments like interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements or other derivative instruments also involve certain risks. For details, please refer SAI.

#### 3. Risks Associated with Stock Lending & Short Selling:

The risks in lending portfolio securities, as with other extensions of credit, consist of the failure of another party, in this case the approved intermediary, to comply with the terms of agreement entered into between the lender of securities i.e. the Scheme and the approved intermediary. Such failure to comply can result in the possible loss of rights in the collateral put up by the borrower of the securities, the inability of the approved intermediary to return the securities deposited by the lender and the possible loss of any corporate benefits accruing to the lender from the securities deposited with the approved intermediary. It may be noted that this activity would have the inherent probability of collateral value drastically falling in times of strong downward market trends, rendering the value of collateral inadequate until such time as that diminution in value is replenished by additional security. It is also possible that the borrowing party and/or the approved intermediary may suddenly suffer severe business setback and become unable to honor its commitments. This, along with a simultaneous fall in value of collateral would render potential loss to the Scheme. Besides, there can be temporary illiquidity of the securities that are lent out and the scheme will not be able to sell such lent out securities until they are returned. There is also a possibility of opportunity loss.

For details please refer SAI.

#### 4. Risks Associated with Trading of Units on Stock Exchange(s):

- Although Units of the Scheme as mentioned in this Scheme Information Document are to be listed on the Exchange, there can be no assurance that an active secondary market will develop or be maintained.
- The Units of the Scheme may trade above or below their NAV. The NAV of the Scheme will fluctuate with changes in the market value of Scheme's holdings. The trading prices of Units of the Scheme will fluctuate in accordance with changes in their NAV as well as demand and supply of the Units of the Scheme in the market.
- Trading in Units of the Scheme on the exchange may be halted because of market conditions or for reasons that in view of exchange authorities or SEBI, trading in Units of the Scheme is not

advisable. In addition, trading in Units of the Scheme is subject to trading halts caused by extraordinary market volatility and pursuant to Exchange and SEBI 'circuit filter' rules. There can be no assurance that the requirements of Exchange necessary to maintain the listing of Units of the Scheme will continue to be met or will remain unchanged.

- The Units will be issued in demat form through depositories. The records of the depository are final with respect to the number of Units available to the credit of Unit holder. Settlement of trades, repurchase of Units by the Mutual Fund on the Maturity Date / Final Redemption Date will depend upon the confirmations to be received from depository(ies) on which the Mutual Fund has no control.
- As the Units allotted under Scheme) will be listed on the Exchange, the Mutual Fund shall not provide for redemption / repurchase of Units prior to Maturity Date of the respective Scheme(s).

#### 5. Risk associated with Close Ended Scheme

In a close ended scheme, redemption / repurchase shall not be allowed prior to maturity of the Scheme. Redemption will be allowed only on maturity of the scheme. The Scheme will mature at the end of the tenure of the Scheme. For liquidity purpose units of the Scheme are to be listed on Stock Exchange. Investors who wish to trade on the exchange and Investors wishing to exit / redeem before the scheduled maturity may do so through stock exchange mode where the Scheme will be listed. For the units listed on the exchange it is possible that the market price at which the units are traded may be at a discount to the NAV of such Units and investor may not get the desired return. Also there may not be sufficient liquidity on the stock exchange for the investors to exit from the stock exchange mode.

#### **B** REQUIREMENT OF MINIMUM INVESTORS IN THE SCHEME

The Scheme shall have a minimum of 20 investors and no single investor shall account for more than 25% of the corpus of the Scheme. These conditions will be complied with immediately after the close of the NFO itself i.e. at the time of allotment. In case of non-fulfillment with the condition of minimum 20 investors, the Scheme/Series shall be wound up in accordance with Regulation 39 (2) (c) of SEBI (MF) Regulations automatically without any reference from SEBI. In case of non-fulfillment with the condition of 25% holding by a single investor on the date of allotment, the application to the extent of exposure in excess of the stipulated 25% limit would be liable to be rejected and the allotment would be effective only to the extent of 25% of the corpus collected. Consequently, such exposure over 25% limits will lead to refund within 5 Business Days from the date of closure of the New Fund Offer.

#### C SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Sponsor is not responsible or liable for any loss resulting from the operation of the Scheme beyond the initial contribution of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh) collectively made by them towards setting up the Scheme or such other accretions and additions to the initial corpus set up by the Sponsor.

Neither this Document nor the Units have been registered in any other jurisdiction. The distribution of Units /this Statement in certain jurisdictions may be restricted or totally prohibited and accordingly, persons who come into possession of this Document are required to inform themselves about, and to observe, any such restrictions.

The AMC can invest in any of the schemes of Edelweiss Mutual Fund subject to the limits as prescribed by the SEBI Regulations and in such case it will not be entitled to charge any fees on such investments. The Sponsor, entities managed or sponsored by the affiliates or associates of the Sponsor, Funds managed/ advised by the Sponsor/and their associated entities, the Asset Management Company, the Custodian, the Registrar, any Associate, any Distributor, Dealer, any Company, Corporate Bodies, Trusts, any Service Provider, investor (resident or non-resident), any scheme / Mutual Fund managed by the Asset Management Company or by any other Asset Management Company may invest in this Scheme, subject to the limits specified by SEBI. While at all times the Trusteeship Company and the Asset Management Company will endeavor that excessive holding of Units in the Scheme among a few Unit holders is avoided, however, the funds invested by these aforesaid persons may acquire a substantial portion of the Scheme's outstanding Units and collectively may constitute a majority unit holder in the Scheme. Redemption of Units held by such persons may have an adverse impact on the value of the Units of the Scheme because of the timing of any such redemption. It may also have impact on the liquidity of the Scheme, which may lead to an adverse impact on the NAV of the scheme.

Prospective investors should review / study this document in addition with Statement of Additional Information in its entirety and shall not construe the contents hereof or regard the summaries contained herein as advice relating to legal, taxation, or financial / investment matters and are advised to consult their own professional advisor(s) as to the legal, tax, financial or any other requirements or restrictions relating to the subscription, gifting, acquisition, holding, disposal (by way of sale, switch or redemption or conversion into money) of Units and to the treatment of income (if any), capitalisation, capital gains, any distribution, and other tax consequences relevant to their subscription, acquisition, holding, capitalisation, disposal (by way of sale, transfer, switch or conversion into money) of Units within their jurisdiction of nationality, residence, incorporation, domicile etc. or under the laws of any jurisdiction to which they or any managed funds to be used to Purchase / gift Units are subject, and also to determine possible legal, tax, financial or other consequences of subscribing / gifting, purchasing or holding Units before making an application for Units.

The tax benefits described in this Document in addition with Statement of Additional Information are as available under the present taxation laws and are available subject to relevant conditions. The information given is included only for general purpose and is based on advice received by the AMC regarding the law and practice currently in force in India and the Investors should be aware that the relevant fiscal rules or their interpretation may change. As is the case with any investment, there can be no guarantee that the tax position or the proposed tax position prevailing at the time of an investment in the Scheme will endure indefinitely.

#### D DEFINITIONS & ABBREVIATIONS

The following scheme specific definitions/terms apply throughout this document in addition to the definitions mentioned in the Statement of Additional Information unless the context requires otherwise:

Applicable NAV	The Net Asset Value (NAV) applicable for purchases or switch-ins, based on the time of the Business Day & relevant cut off time by which the application is accepted at the Investor Service Centres and/or at Branches. Being a scheme listed on stock exchange(s), there will be no redemption or switch-out till the maturity of the scheme.
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA)	An application containing an authorization to block the application money in the bank account for subscribing to the NFO.

AMC or Investment	Edelweiss Asset Management Limited, the asset management company set
Manager or EAML	up under the Companies Act, 1956 and authorized by SEBI to act as the
	asset management company to the schemes of Edelweiss Mutual Fund.
Beneficial Owner	As defined in the Depositories Act 1996 (22 of 1996) means a person whose
	name is recorded as such with a depository.
Business Day	Business Day is a day other than (a) Saturday and Sunday or (b) a day on
	which banks in Mumbai including Reserve Bank of India are closed for
	business or clearing or (c) a day on which BSE Ltd. and /or National Stock
	Exchange are closed or(d) a day which is a public and/or bank holiday at
	Edelweiss ISC or their R&T Agent's ISC where the application is received or
	(e) a day on which sale and repurchase of Units is suspended by the AMC or
	(f) a day on which normal business could not be transacted due to storms,
	floods, bandhs, strikes, etc. or (g) a day on which money markets are closed
	for business / not accessible or (h) a day on which funds accompanying
	applications cannot be realized and / or are not available for utilisation for
	investments or investments cannot be liquidated and / or funds are not
	available for utilization for redemption / repurchase.
	The AMC reserves the right to declare any day as Business Day or otherwise
	at any of the ISCs.
Consolidated	Consolidated Account Statement/CAS is a statement containing details
Account	relating to all the transactions across all mutual funds viz. purchase,
Statement/CAS	redemption, switch, dividend payout, dividend reinvestment, systematic
	investment plan, systematic withdrawal plan, systematic transfer plan and
	bonus transactions, etc.
Credit Risk	Risk of default in payment of principal or interest or both.
Custodian	Standard Chartered Bank, Mumbai registered under the Securities and
	Exchange Board of India (Custodian of Securities) Regulations 1996, acting
	as Custodian for the Scheme, and includes such Custodian(s) as may be
	appointed from time to time.
Day	Any day (including Saturday, Sunday and holiday) as per English Calendar
	viz. 365 days in a year. For the filing of an official request, if the day is a
	Saturday, Sunday, or federal (or gazetted or statutory) holiday, or any
	occurrence causes the closure of the designated accepting office (for part or
	whole of the day), the next day that office is open is counted as the day.
Debt Instruments	Government securities including Treasury Bills, Corporate debentures,
	bonds, promissory notes, pass-through obligations and other possible
	similar securities.
Depository	Depository as defined in the Depositories Act, 1996 (22 of 1996).
Depository	'Depository Participant' or 'DP' means a person registered as such under
Participant or DP	subsection (1A) of section 12 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
	Act, 1992.
Derivatives	A financial instrument, traded on or off an exchange, the price of which is
	directly dependent upon (i.e., "derived from") the value of one or more
	underlying securities, debt instruments, commodities, other derivative
	instruments, or any agreed upon pricing index or arrangement (e.g., the
	movement over time of the Consumer Price Index or freight rates) etc. is
	known as a derivative. Derivatives involve the trading of rights or
	obligations based on the underlying product, but do not directly transfer
	property.
Dividend	Income distributed by the Mutual Fund on the Units.
Electronic Fund	Electronic Fund Transfer includes all the means of electronic transfer like
Transfer/ EFT	Direct Credit / Debit, Electronic Clearing System (ECS), RTGS, NEFT, Wire
	Transfer or such like modes as may be introduced by relevant authorities
	from time to time.
Exchange or Stock	National Stock Exchange of India Limited and such other recognized stock
Exchange	exchange(s) where the Units of the Scheme are listed.

<b></b>	
Floating Rate Instruments	Floating rate instruments are debt / money market instruments that have a variable coupon, equal to a reference rate e.g. MIBOR (Mumbai Interbank Offered Rate) or any other rate, plus a spread. The spread is a rate that remains constant. The frequency of coupon payments as well as reset may differ among such various instruments. At the beginning of each coupon period, the coupon is calculated by taking the fixing of the reference rate for that day and adding the spread.
Foreign Institutional Investor or FII	Means an institution established or incorporated outside India and registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended from time to time.
Fund / Mutual Fund / EMF	Edelweiss Mutual Fund, a trust set up under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered as a Mutual Fund with SEBI bearing SEBI Registration No. MF/057/08/02 dated April 30, 2008.
Gilt or Government Securities	As defined under Section 2(b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, Government Security means a security created and issued, whether before or after the commencement of the Act, by the Central Government and/or a State Government and having one of the forms specified in clause (2) of Section 2 of the Public Debt Act, 1944 (18 of 1944) including any amendments thereto or any replacement or re-enactment thereof/clarification and guidelines in the form of notes or circulars etc. issued from time to time; Treasury Bills, such other instruments as may be declared by Government of India and/or SEBI and/or RBI and/or any other regulatory authority to be securities; and rights or interest in the securities.
Investor Service Centre / ISC	Investor Service Centres, as designated from time to time by the AMC, whether of the Registrar or AMC's own branches, being official points of acceptance, authorized to receive Application Forms for Purchase/ Redemption /Switch and other service requests/queries from investors/Unit Holders. For details please refer to the application form and/or website of the Mutual Fund at www.edelweissmf.com.
Load	In the case of redemption / switch out of a Unit, the sum of money deducted from the Applicable NAV and in the case of subscription / switch in of a Unit, a sum of money to be paid by the prospective investor on the Sale / Switch in of a Unit in addition to the Applicable NAV.
Maturity Date/Final Redemption Date	The date (or the immediately following Business Day, if that date is not a Business Day) on which the Units under the Scheme will be compulsorily and without any further act by the Unit holder(s) redeemed at the Applicable NAV.
Money Market Instruments	Money Market Instruments as defined in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to time. Money market instruments include commercial papers, commercial bills, treasury bills, Government securities having an unexpired maturity up to one year, call or notice money, CBLO, certificates of deposit, usance bills, and any other like instruments as specified by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.
NAV or Net Asset Value	Net Asset Value of the Units of the respective Plan/Option under the Scheme calculated in the manner provided in this Document and in conformity with the SEBI Regulations as prescribed from time to time.
New Fund Offer or NFO	Offer for purchase of Units of Scheme during the NFO Period as described hereinafter.
New Fund Offer Period or NFO Period	The date on or the period during which the initial subscription of Units of the Scheme can be made subject to extension, if any.
Official Points of Acceptance Reserve Bank of India or RBI	<ul><li>Places, as specified by AMC from time to time where application for subscription / redemption / switch will be accepted on ongoing basis.</li><li>Reserve Bank of India established under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.</li></ul>

Repurchase of Units by the Scheme from a Unit holder on the Maturity
Date.
The price at which the Units can be redeemed on Maturity Date and calculated in the manner provided in this Document.
Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd., currently acting as registrar to the Scheme,
or any other registrar appointed by the AMC from time to time.
of any other registral appointed by the AMC from time to time.
Sale/Purchase of Securities as may be allowed by RBI from time to time with
simultaneous agreement to repurchase/resell them at a later date.
Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan – Series 42and each of the Plan(s)/Option(s)
offered under such Scheme(s). Each such Fixed Maturity Plan being a
distinct entity is in the nature of a Scheme under the SEBI (MF) Regulations
and having separate portfolio.
This document issued by Edelweiss Mutual Fund offering Units of the
Scheme(s) there under for Subscription.
Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the SEBI Act,
1992.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations,
1996, as amended from time to time, including its Circulars, Notification $\&$
Guidelines.
As defined in The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 & includes
notes, bonds, debentures, debenture stock, warrants, etc., futures, options,
derivatives, etc. or other transferable securities of a like nature in or of any
incorporated company or other body corporate, Gilts / Government
Securities, Mutual Fund Units, Money Market Instruments like Commercial
Paper, Treasury Bills, etc. and such other instruments as may be declared by
GOI and / or SEBI and / or RBI and / or any other regulatory authority to be securities and rights or interest in securities.
The document issued by Edelweiss Mutual Fund containing details of
Edelweiss Mutual Fund, its constitution, and certain tax, legal and general
information. SAI is legally a part of the SID.
Lending of securities to another person or entity for a fixed period of time,
at a negotiated compensation in order to enhance returns of the portfolio
as may be permitted by SEBI from time to time.
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited, a Company set up under the
Companies Act 1956, to act as the Trustee to Edelweiss Mutual Fund.
The interest of an investor, which consists of one undivided share in the net
assets of the Scheme.
A person holding Units of a Scheme of a Mutual Fund offered under this
Document.
The relative rate at which the price of a security moves up and down.
Volatility is found by calculating the annualized standard deviation of daily
change in price. If the price of a stock moves up and down rapidly over short
time periods, it has high volatility. If the price almost never changes, it has
low volatility.

### Abbreviations:

AMFI	The Association of Mutual Funds in	NEFT	National Electronic Fund Transfer Service
	India		
BSE	Bombay Stock Exchange Limited	NRI	Non Resident Investor
FIMMDA	Fixed Income Money Market &	NSE	National Stock Exchange of India Limited
	Derivatives Dealers Association		
GOI	Government of India	OIS	Overnight Indexed Swap

IMA	Investment Management Agreement	POA	Power of Attorney
	0		
I.T. Act	The Income Tax Act, 1961 as	RTGS	Real Time Gross Settlement
	amended from time to time.		
КҮС	Know Your Customer	SEBI Act	The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
			1992
MIBOR	Mumbai Interbank Offered Rate	SPVs	Special Purpose Vehicles approved by the
			appropriate authority.

#### Interpretation:

For all purposes of this Document, except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) Words denoting any gender shall include all genders.

- (b) Words used in singular would include plural form and vice-versa.
- (c) A reference to a thing includes a part of that thing.
- (d) Any reference to any statute or statutory provision shall be construed as including a reference to any statutory modifications or re-enactment from time to time.
- (e) Clause headings are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this Document.

(f) Words and expressions used herein but not defined shall have the meaning specified in the Companies Act, 1956, Securities Contract (Regulations) Act, 1956, SEBI Act, 1992, SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, Depositories Act, 1996, Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Public Debts Act, 1944, Information Security Act, 2000 and the Rules, Income Tax Act 1961, Contract Act 1872, Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, Foreign Exchange Management Act & Regulations and the Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued thereunder from time to time.

#### E. DUE DILIGENCE BY THE ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY

A Due Diligence Certificate, duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer of Edelweiss Asset Management Limited, has been submitted to SEBI, which reads as follows:

#### DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE

It is confirmed that:

- 1. The Scheme Information Document forwarded to SEBI is in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and the guidelines and directives issued by SEBI from time to time.
- 2. All legal requirements connected with the launching of the Scheme and also the Guidelines, instructions, etc. issued by the Government of India and any other competent authority in this behalf, have been duly complied with.
- 3. The disclosures made in the Scheme Information Document are true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make a well-informed decision regarding investments in the proposed Scheme.
- 4. The intermediaries named in the Scheme Information Document and Statement of Additional Information are registered with SEBI and their registration is valid, as on date.
- 5. The contents of Scheme Information Document including figures, data, yields, etc. have been checked and are factually correct.

Signed: sd/-

Place: Mumbai Date: January 18, 2017 Name : Radhika Gupta Designation: Chief Executive Officer

#### II INFORMATION ABOUT THE SCHEME

#### A NAME & TYPE OF SCHEME

Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan - Series 42 is a Close-ended Income Scheme.

#### B INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

The investment objective of the Scheme is to generate income through investments in Debt / Money Market Instruments and Government Securities maturing on or before the Maturity Date of the Scheme.

However, there is no assurance that the investment objective of the Scheme will be realized and the Scheme does not assure or guarantee any returns.

#### C ASSET ALLOCATION AND INVESTMENT PATTERN

Under normal circumstances, the anticipated asset allocation of each Scheme would be as follows:

		sets)
Min	imum Max	timum
o Medium	30 1	L00
	0	20
t		to Medium 80 1

Note: The Scheme will invest only in such securities which mature on or before the Maturity Date of the Scheme.

The Scheme will not invest in credit default swaps, securitized debt and foreign securities.

Exposure in derivatives will be limited up to 50% of corpus of the Scheme.

Total gross exposure in debt, money market securities and derivatives shall not exceed 100% of the net assets of the Scheme.

In addition to the instruments stated in the table above, the Scheme may enter into Collateralised Borrowing & Lending Obligations (CBLO) or repo/reverse repo or in an alternative investment as may be provided by SEBI/RBI from time to time. However, the Scheme shall not participate in repos of corporate debt securities.

The Scheme may, if the Trustees permit, engage in short selling of securities in accordance with the framework relating to short selling and securities lending and borrowing specified by SEBI. The Scheme shall not deploy more than 20% of its net assets in stock lending and not more than 5% of the net assets of the Scheme will be deployed in Stock lending to any single counterparty.

Pending deployment of the funds in securities in terms of investment objective of the Scheme, the AMC may park the funds of the Scheme in short term deposits of the Scheduled Commercial Banks, subject to the guidelines issued by SEBI vide its circular dated April 16, 2007, as may be amended from time to time.

#### \* Portfolio Rebalancing :

Subject to the Regulations, the asset allocation pattern indicated above is indicative and not absolute and may change from time to time, keeping in view market conditions, market opportunities, applicable regulations and political and economic factors. It must be clearly understood that the percentages stated above are only indicative and not absolute and that they can vary substantially depending upon the perception of the Fund Manager, the intention being at all times to seek to protect the interests of the Unit holders. Such changes in the investment pattern will be for short term and defensive considerations only. In the event of deviations, rebalancing will be carried out within 30 days from the date of said deviation. In case the rebalancing is not done within the specified period, justification for the same shall be provided to the Investment Committee and the reason for the same shall be recorded in writing. The Investment Committee shall then decide on the course of action.

Subject to the above, any change in the asset allocation affecting the investment profile of the Schemes shall be effected only in accordance with the provisions of sub-Regulation (15A) of Regulation 18 of the SEBI Regulations, as detailed later in this Document.

#### \* Investment in CBLO before the closure of NFO:

In accordance with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/IMD/DF2/CIR/P/2016/42, dated March 18, 2016, the scheme may deploy the NFO proceeds in CBLO before the closure of NFO period. The appreciation received from investment in CBLO shall be passed on to investors. In case if the scheme is not able to garner the minimum subscription amount during the NFO period the interest earned upon investment of NFO proceeds in CBLO shall be returned to investors, in proportion of their investments, along-with the refund of the subscription amount. The AMC shall not charge any investment management and advisory fees on funds deployed in CBLOs during the NFO period.

#### \* Intended Portfolio for Schemes

The Scheme shall invest in various securities/instruments as mentioned below with the ratings mentioned against the type of instruments. As per the Regulations, the Scheme is allowed to invest within a range of 5% of the intended allocation (floor and cap) against each sub asset class/credit rating.

	Indicative allocation (as % to Net Assets)			ets)
Asset Class/ Instruments	Credit Rating assigned by an accredited SEBI registered credit rating agency			I credit rating agency
	A1+	AAA equivalent	Sovereign	Not Applicable
CDs	0-5%	-	-	-
CPs	0-5%	-	-	-
NCDs	-	40%-45%	-	-
G-Sec / SDL	-	-	55-60%	
Cash and Cash equivalent / Units of Liquid Fund	-	-	-	0-5%

Note:

- a. Securities with Rating AA will include AA+, AA and AA-. Similarly, AAA equivalent rating shall also include A1+ which are the highest rating provided for the instruments in short term category i.e. instruments having maturity of equal to or less than one year. Also, securities with Rating A will include A+, A and A-. In case an instrument has more than one publicly available rating, the more conservative rating will be considered for the purpose of investment.
- b. Positive variation: The Scheme may deviate from the indicated asset allocation in favour of higher credit rated instruments within the same asset class.
- c. In case of non-availability of CPs/NCDs the Scheme may invest in the highest rated CDs and CBLOs/T-Bills. Such deviation may exist till suitable NCD/CP of desired credit quality is not available.
- d. At the time of building up the portfolio post NFO Period and also towards the maturity of the Scheme, there may be higher allocation to cash and cash equivalent instruments.
- e. In the event of any deviation from the floor and ceiling of credit ratings specified for any instrument, the Fund Manager shall review and rebalance the portfolio within 30 days from the date of said deviation. In case the rebalancing is not done within the specified period, justification for the same shall be provided to the Investment Committee and the reason for the same shall be recorded in writing. The Investment Committee shall then decide on the course of action.

#### D WHERE WILL THE SCHEME INVEST?

The corpus of the Scheme will be invested in debt and money market instruments maturing in line with the duration of the Scheme. Debt and money market instruments will include but not limited to:

**Commercial Paper (CP)** is an unsecured negotiable money market instrument issued in the form of a promissory note. CPs is issued by corporates as an alternative source of working capital finance. They are issued at a discount to face value, as may be determined mutually by the issuer & investor. CP is traded in secondary market and can be freely bought and sold before maturity.

**Certificates of Deposit (CD)** is a negotiable money market instrument issued by scheduled commercial banks and select all-India Financial Institutions (FIs) that have been permitted by RBI to raise short-term resources. The minimum denomination of CD should be Rs. 1 Lac and in multiples of Rs. 1 Lac thereafter. The maturity period of CDs issued by the banks is between 7 days and one year. FIs can issue CDs for a period not less than 1 year and not exceeding 3 years from the date of issue. CDs also are issued at a discount to face value and can be traded in secondary market akin to CPs.

**Treasury Bills (T-Bills)** are issued by the Government of India to meet their short-term borrowing requirement. Presently, T-Bills are issued for original maturities of 91 days, 182 days and 364 days. T-Bills are issued at a discount to their face value and redeemed at par.

**Government Securities** are securities created and issued by the Central Government and / or State Government.

**Fixed Deposits** are deposits with Banks for a fixed term at a rate which is determined by various factors such as the term, the amount etc. Pending deployment as per investment objective, the money under the Scheme may be invested in short-term deposits of Scheduled Commercial Banks.

**Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO)** is a money market instrument that enables entities, to borrow and lend against sovereign collateral security. It is in electronic form. The maturity ranges from 1 day to 90 days and can also be made available up to 1 year. Central Government Securities including T-bills are eligible securities that can be used as collateral for borrowing through CBLO.

**Repo (Repurchase agreement)**: A Repo or Reverse Repo is a transaction in which two parties agree to sell and repurchase the same security. Under such an agreement the seller sells specified securities with an agreement to repurchase the same at a mutually decided future date and price. Similarly, the buyer purchases the securities with an agreement to resell the same to the seller on an agreed date at a predetermined price. The transaction results in collateralized borrowing or lending of funds. Such a transaction is called Repo when viewed from the perspective of the seller of the securities and borrower of funds and Reverse Repo when viewed from the perspective of the buyer of the securities and lender of funds.

\* Securities Lending: Securities lending means the lending of securities to another person or entity for a fixed period of time at a negotiated compensation in order to enhance returns of the portfolio. The securities lent would have to be returned by the borrower on the expiry of the stipulated period. The AMC will adhere to strict limits should it engage in securities lending. Collateral would always be obtained by the approved intermediary from such borrower. Collateral value would always be more than the value of the securities lent. Collateral can be in form of cash, bank guarantee and government securities, as may be agreed upon with the approved intermediary.

\* Non Convertible Debentures as well as Bonds are securities issued by Public Sector Enterprises, Public Sector Banks, All India Financial Institutions, Private Sector Companies etc. for their normal business activities, which may be secured or unsecured against assets of the company. This is one of the sources of financing for corporates which may be in the nature of short term or long term depending on the requirement of the entity. They are priced at a spread over the corresponding government security depending on the level of perceived risk. Different types of securities are fixed interest securities with or without put/call option, fixed interest security where the maturity amount is received in installments, floating rate bonds, zero-coupon bonds (bonds with no intervening interest cash flows)etc. Frequency of interest payments could be monthly/quarterly/semi-annual/annual or zero coupon bonds etc depending on each issue.

**Floating rate debt instruments** are debt instruments issued by Central / State governments, Corporates, PSUs, etc. with interest rates that are reset periodically. The periodicity of interest reset could be daily, monthly, quarterly, half yearly, and annually or any other periodicity that may be mutually agreed between the issuer and the Fund. The fund manager will have the flexibility to invest the debt component into floating rate debt securities in order to reduce the impact of rising interest rate in the economy. Short term debt consideration for this Scheme includes maintaining an adequate float to meet expenses and other liquidity needs.

\* Derivative Instrument like Interest Rate Swaps, Forward Rate Agreement and such other derivative instruments as may be permitted under the Regulations.

\* Pending deployment of funds as per the investment objective of the Scheme, the funds may be parked in short term deposits of the Scheduled Commercial Banks, subject to guidelines and limits specified by SEBI.

**\* Investments in the Schemes of Mutual Fund:** The Scheme may invest in schemes managed by the AMC or in the schemes of any other Mutual Fund, provided it is in conformity with the investment objectives of the Scheme and in terms of the prevailing SEBI Regulations. As per the SEBI Regulations, no Investment Management fees will be charged for such investments and the aggregate inter scheme investment made by all schemes in the schemes of the Mutual Fund or in the schemes under the management of any other asset management company shall not exceed 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Mutual Fund.

\* Any other domestic debt securities as permitted by RBI/SEBI/ such other Regulatory Authority from time to time.

The above-mentioned securities could be listed, unlisted, secured, unsecured, rated or unrated and may be acquired through Primary, secondary market offerings, private placements, rights offer etc. Further, investments in debentures, bonds and other fixed income securities will usually be in instruments, which have been assigned investment grade ratings by an approved rating agency. In cases where the debt instrument is unrated, specific approval from the Board of the Asset Management Company and the Board of Trustees shall be obtained. However, the same shall be subject to limitations as contained in clause 1 and 1A, of Schedule VII to SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996.

#### E INVESTMENT STRATEGY & APPROACH

The Scheme will, under normal market conditions, generate income through investments in Debt / Money Market Instruments and Government Securities maturing on or before the Maturity Date of the Scheme.

Income may be generated through the amortization of discount on debt instruments, or the purchase and sale of securities in the underlying portfolio.

The investment strategy would be to construct a portfolio of suitable and approved fixed income instruments, based on our understanding of qualitative and quantitative parameters of the borrowing entities, which are rated by an external rating agency and have favorable risk & reward matrix at the time of purchase. Since Fixed Maturity Plans are close-ended income schemes, the Fund Manager will endeavor to optimize the portfolio yield while paying due attention to the credit quality, structure and other relevant aspects of fixed income investment.

Some of the qualitative parameters include understanding brief history of the borrowing entity, its parentage, major share-holders and their background, their business track-record, their relevant

experience in managing the borrowing entity during multiple business cycles, strategic importance of the borrowing entity for its promoters, study of the industry and its current dynamics, the current operating environment and key variables that may affect the business prospects, likelihood of any M&A activities or technology-driven disruption, study of any likely environmental, social, legal or governance issues and their likely negative impact on the business or cash flow.

Some of the quantitative factors include study of audited balance-sheets, income statements, cashflow statements, current debt levels & its composition and emerging trends, trend analysis of key credit, liquidity and profitability ratios, relative comparison of the borrowing entity's key parameters with competition in the same sector with an aim to derive relative positioning of the borrowing entity. Apart from the financial data, we may also study the borrowing entity's outstanding debt and its ability and cost of access to capital markets.

The Fund will predominantly invest in a diversified basket of debt & money market instruments.

**Credit Evaluation Process of the Fund:** The Credit Evaluation Process of the Fund for debt securities is based on analytics and includes non-financial and financial filters such as track record, quality of financial information, background of promoter/group, industry demand, global market share/ competitiveness, prudence in financial and accounting policies, compliance culture, minimum return on capital, margin on sales, market capitalization, floating stock, liquidity etc. In case of debt markets, the specific macro economic factors, domestic as well as global, create major impact on price movements.

The Credit Evaluation Process is backed by a research support in following areas:

- Fundamental Research
- Macroeconomic factors and changes Global & Domestic
- Comparative study of bonds markets, currency markets and credit markets in India
- Industry analysis
- Company analysis Financial as well as non financial factors
- Technical analysis
- Research reports based on behavioral patterns in the Market

Apart from the above, data & reports from various resources will be considered before arriving at investment decision. Interactions with company management are also carried out wherever necessary.

The investment process involves formulating Investment Strategies based on Interest rate outlook and includes the following risk mitigating measures like:

- Fixing Duration
- Yield curve modeling
- Core & Trading portfolio segregation strategy
- Scenario Analysis
- Interest rate sensitivity Analysis

In assessing the market value sensitivity of the debt portfolio, the AMC applies duration analysis. Modified duration is generally used to measure potential appreciation/ depreciation in the portfolio under different interest rate scenarios. In applying duration, all embedded options (caps, floors, indices, reset frequencies, prepayments, etc.) are considered while analyzing any floating rate investments to more accurately measure market value sensitivity. Special emphasis is given to macro-economic analysis, which includes assessment of factors affecting interest rates like inflation, liquidity, monetary policy measures and global developments, in addition to diligently analysing the micro factors affecting the investment decisions. These serve to create a strategic backdrop for actual portfolio construction. Essentially, the Fund makes its own internal credit analysis and assigns rating even in respect of rated securities and does not entirely rely on the ratings of external agencies.

The Fund also carries out Credit Spread Analysis as under:

• Monitor corporate actions and change in internal credit ratings on regular basis

- Analyzing credit spreads across time periods
- Global yields and Risk spreads analysis

The Credit Evaluation Process of the Fund for debt securities is explained in the following flow chart:



Exposure to any sector will be based on the sector view of the Fund Manager and the Research Team at the time of deployment of funds under the Scheme. The Scheme will not invest in Companies falling within Gems and Jewellery and Leather & Leather Products Sector.

#### \* Derivative Strategies:

The Scheme may invest in derivative instruments like Interest Rate Swaps, Forward Rate Agreements, or such other derivative instruments as may be introduced from time to time and as permitted under the SEBI (MF) Regulations and guidelines.

Further, SEBI Circular dated August 18, 2010 has clarified that Mutual Funds may enter into plain vanilla interest rate swaps for hedging purposes. The counter party in such transactions has to be an entity recognized as a market maker by RBI. Further, the value of the notional principal in such cases must not exceed the value of respective existing assets being hedged by the scheme. Exposure to a single counterparty in such transactions should not exceed 10% of the net assets of the scheme.

The cumulative gross exposure through debt, money market and derivative positions should not exceed 100% of the net assets of the scheme.

The following information provides a basic idea as to the nature of the derivative instruments proposed to be used by the Fund and the benefits and risks attached therewith.

#### Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) and Forward Rate Agreements (FRA)

#### Benefits

Bond markets in India are not very liquid. Investors run the risk of illiquidity in such markets. Investing for short-term periods for liquidity purposes has its own risks. Investors can benefit if the Fund

remains in call market for the liquidity and at the same time take advantage of fixed rate by entering into a swap. It adds certainty to the returns without sacrificing liquidity.

#### IRS

All swaps are financial contracts, which involve exchange (swap) of a set of payments owned by one party for another set of payments owned by another party, usually through an intermediary (market maker). An IRS can be defined as a contract between two parties (Counter Parties) to exchange, on particular dates in the future, one series of cash flows, (fixed interest) for another series of cash flows (variable or floating interest) in the same currency and on the same principal for an agreed period of time. The exchange of cash flows need not occur on the same date.

#### FRA

A FRA is an agreement between two counter parties to pay or to receive the difference between an agreed fixed rate (the FRA rate) and the interest rate prevailing on a stipulated future date, based on a notional amount, for an agreed period. In short, in a FRA, interest rate is fixed now for a future period. The special feature of FRAs is that the only payment is the difference between the FRA rate and the reference rate and hence is single settlement contracts. As in the case of IRS, notional amounts are not exchanged. However, there is the possibility that a loss may be sustained by the portfolio as a result of the failure of another party to comply with the terms of the contract. To the extent that settlements of contracts are not guaranteed by an exchange or clearing corporation, hence, there is the risk of counterparty to a deal defaulting in payment.

The Scheme intends to use derivatives for the purposes, which may be permitted by SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations from time to time, which will include hedging & portfolio balancing. Hedging does not mean maximization of returns but only reduction of systematic or market risk inherent in the investment.

#### Illustrations -

**Basic Structure of a Swap:** Assume that the Scheme has a Rs. 100 crore floating rate investment linked to MIBOR (Mumbai Inter Bank Offered Rate). Hence, the Scheme is currently running an interest rate risk and stands to lose if the interest rate moves down. To hedge this interest rate risk, the Scheme can enter into a 12 month MIBOR swap. Through this swap, the Scheme will receive a fixed predetermined rate (assume 6.50%) and pays the "benchmark rate" (MIBOR), which is fixed by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) or any other agency such as Reuters. This swap would effectively lock-in the rate of 6.50% for the next 12 months, eliminating the daily interest rate risk. This usually is routed through an intermediary who runs a book and matches deals between various counterparties.

The steps will be as follows -

- Assuming the swap is for Rs. 100 crore from April 1, 2017 to April 1, 2018. The Scheme is a fixed rate receiver at 6.50% and the counterparty is a floating rate receiver at the overnight rate on a compounded basis (say NSE MIBOR).
- On April 1, 2017 the Scheme and the counterparty will exchange only a contract of having entered this swap. This documentation would be as per International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA).
- On a daily basis, the benchmark rate fixed by NSE will be tracked by them.
- On April 1, 2018 they will calculate the following -
  - The Scheme is entitled to receive interest on Rs. 100 crore at 6.50% for 365 days i.e. Rs. 6.50 crore, (this amount is known at the time the swap was concluded) and will pay the compounded benchmark rate.
  - The counterparty is entitled to receive daily compounded call rate for 365 days and pay 6.50% fixed.

- On April 1, 2018, if the total interest on the daily overnight compounded benchmark rate is higher than Rs. 6.50 crore, the Scheme will pay the difference to the counterparty. If the daily compounded benchmark rate is lower, then the counterparty will pay the Scheme the difference.
- Effectively the Scheme earns interest at the rate of 6.50% p.a. for 12 months without lending money for 12 months fixed, while the counterparty pays interest @ 6.50% p.a. for 12 months on Rs. 100 crore, without borrowing for 12 months fixed.

The above example illustrates the benefits and risks of using derivatives for hedging and optimizing the investment portfolio. Swaps have their own drawbacks like credit risk, settlement risk. However, these risks are substantially reduced as the amount involved is interest streams and not principal.

#### Investment strategy while using Overnight Indexed Swaps:

In a rising interest rate scenario the Scheme may enhance returns for the investor by hedging the risk on its fixed interest paying assets by entering into an OIS contract where the Scheme agrees to pay a fixed interest rate on a specified notional amount, for a predetermined tenor and receives floating interest rate payments on the same notional amount. The fixed returns from the Scheme's assets and the fixed interest payments to be made by the Scheme on account of the OIS transaction offset each other and the Scheme benefits on the floating interest payments that it receives.

The Scheme may enter into an opposite position in case of a falling interest rate scenario, i.e., to hedge the floating rate assets in its portfolio the Scheme enters into an OIS transaction wherein it receives a fixed interest rate on a specified notional amount for a specified time period and pays a floating interest rate on the same notional amount. The floating interest payments that the Scheme receives on its floating rate securities and the floating interest payments that the Scheme has to pay on account of the OIS transaction offset each other and the Scheme benefits on the fixed interest payments that it receives in such a scenario.

#### \* Investment in debt/ money market instruments:

To achieve its investment objective, the Scheme may also invest, in Debt Instruments which are listed/unlisted and/or rated/unrated debt or money market instruments/securities, securities issued by public/private sector companies/corporations, short term deposits with banks like Fixed Deposits, financial institutions and/or money market instruments such as commercial paper, certificates of deposit, permitted securities under a reverse-repo agreement, etc. These instruments may carry a fixed rate of return or a floating rate of return or may be issued on a discounted basis. Investments will be made in instruments, which in the opinion of the Fund Managers, are of an acceptable credit quality and chance of default is minimum while conforming to the internal broad guidelines provided in the Investment Policy. The Fund Managers will generally be guided by, but not restrained by, the ratings announced by various rating agencies and independent in-house assessment on the assets in the portfolio. The fund management team with the support of research team will take an active view of the interest rate movement by keeping a close watch on various parameters of the Indian economy, as well as developments in global markets.

Investment views / decisions will be taken on the basis of the following parameters:

- 1. Prevailing interest rate scenario
- 2. Quality of the security / instrument (including the financial health of the issuer)
- 3. Maturity profile of the instrument
- 4. Liquidity of the security
- 5. Growth prospects of the company / industry
- 6. Any other factor in the opinion of the fund management team

#### \* Investment in Mutual Fund Units:

To avoid duplication of portfolios and to reduce expenses, the Scheme may also invest in schemes managed by the AMC or in the schemes of other Mutual Fund, provided that aggregate inter-scheme investment made by all schemes managed by the AMC either in its own schemes or of any other Mutual Fund shall not exceed 5% or such other permitted limit, of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. No investment management fees shall be charged for investing in other schemes of the fund or in the schemes of any other Mutual Fund.

#### \* Risk Control:

Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan – Series 42 proposes to allocate assets predominantly in Debt / Money Market Instruments and Government Securities. .

This allocation will be steadily monitored and it shall be ensured that investments are made in accordance with the scheme objective and within the regulatory and internal investment restrictions prescribed from time to time.

The fund has a process to identify, measure, monitor and manage the portfolio risk. The aim is not to eliminate the risk completely but to have a structured mechanism towards risk management thereby optimizing potential opportunities and minimizing the adverse effects of risk. Few of the key risk identified are:

Risk & Description specific to Debt Securities	Risk mitigants / management strategy	
<u>Credit risk</u>	Investment universe carefully selected to only	
Risk associated with repayment of investment	include issuers with high credit quality	
Performance risk	Understand the working of the fixed income	
Risk arising due to change in factors affecting the	markets and respond effectively to market	
debt market	movements	
Concentration risk	Invest across the spectrum of issuers and keeping	
Risk arising due to over exposure in few	flexibility to invest across tenor	
securities		
Liquidity risk	Control portfolio liquidity at portfolio construction	
Risk arising due to inefficient Asset Liability	stage. Having optimum mix of cash & cash	
Management, resulting in high impact costs	equivalents along with the debt papers in the	
	portfolio	
Interest rate risk	Control the portfolio duration and periodically	
Price volatility due to movement in interest rates	evaluate the portfolio structure with respect to	
	existing interest rate scenario	
Event risk	Understand businesses to respond effectively and	
Price risk due to company or sector specific	speedily to events	
event		

#### \* Portfolio Turnover:

The Scheme will endeavor to keep the portfolio turnover at a minimum. However the portfolio turnover ratio may vary as the Scheme may change the portfolio according to Asset Allocation to align itself with the objectives of the Scheme. The effect of higher portfolio turnover could be higher brokerage and transaction costs.

#### F FUNDAMENTAL ATTRIBUTES

Following are the Fundamental Attributes of the Scheme, in terms of Regulation 18 (15A) of the SEBI (MF) Regulations:

(i) Type of Scheme – A 36 month Close ended Income Scheme.

#### (ii) Investment Objective:

• Main Objective - The primary investment objective of the Scheme is to generate income through investments in Debt / Money Market Instruments and Government Securities maturing on or before the Maturity Date of the Scheme.

However, there is no assurance that the investment objective of the Scheme will be realized and the Scheme does not assure or guarantee any returns.

• Investment pattern – The tentative portfolio break-up with minimum and maximum asset allocation is disclosed in the Section on "Asset Allocation and Investment Pattern" in this Document.

#### (iii) Terms of Issue:

#### \* <u>Liquidity Provisions:</u>

SEBI Regulations require that every close-ended scheme be mandatorily listed on a recognised stock exchange. The Scheme is intended to be listed on NSE or any other stock exchange in India. Investors will not be able to redeem their units during the tenor of the Scheme and the investments can be redeemed only on the Maturity Date of the Scheme. However the units held in dematerialized form can be traded on the Stock Exchange.

#### \* Aggregate fees and expenses charged to the Scheme:

As per the SEBI Regulations, the maximum recurring expenses including the investment management and advisory fee that can be charged to the Scheme shall be subject to a percentage limit of average weekly net assets as given in the table below. Subject to the SEBI Regulations, expenses over and above the prescribed ceiling will be borne by the AMC.

#### Maximum Recurring Expenses

First Rs. 100 Crores	Next Rs. 300 Crores	Next Rs. 300 Crores	Over Rs. 700 Crores
2.25%	2.00%	1.75%	1.50%

As per the SEBI Regulations, the AMC is entitled to an Investment Management and Advisory fee at the rate of 1.25% per annum of the weekly average net assets outstanding in each accounting year for the Scheme(s), as long as the net assets do not exceed Rs. 100 crore and 1.00% of the excess amount over Rs. 100 crore, where net assets so calculated exceed Rs. 100 crore.

For further details refer to "Section IV. Fees and Expenses"

#### \* <u>Any Safety Net or Guarantee Provided :</u>

The Scheme does not provide any safety net or guarantee.

#### Change in Fundamental Attributes:

In accordance with Regulations 18 (15A) of the SEBI Regulations, the Trustee shall ensure that no change in the fundamental attributes of the Scheme and the Plan(s) / Option(s) thereunder or the trust or fee and expenses payable or any other change which would modify the Scheme and the Plan(s) / Option(s) thereunder and affect the interests of Unit holders is carried out unless:

- A written communication about the proposed change is sent to each Unit holder and an advertisement is given in one English daily newspaper having nationwide circulation as well as in a newspaper published in the language of the region where the Head Office of the Mutual Fund is situated; and
- The Unit holders are given an option for a period of 30 days to exit at the prevailing Net Asset Value without any exit load.

#### G BENCHMARK FOR THE SCHEME

The Benchmark of the Scheme will be as follows:

#### **CRISIL Composite Bond Fund Index**

#### Rationale for adoption of benchmark:

The composition of the aforesaid benchmark is such that it is most suited for comparing the performance of the Scheme.

These indices are developed by CRISIL (an independent agency) for benchmarking the performance of a portfolio of debt funds, based on their asset allocation pattern. This index provides the users a convenient, realistic and easily available tool for capturing and analyzing the market movements and to evaluate the corresponding effect on a portfolio.

The Trustee/AMC reserves the right to change the said benchmark and/or adopt one/more other benchmarks to compare the performance of the Scheme.

#### *H* FUND MANAGER FOR THE SCHEME

Mr. Swayam Mangwani will be the Fund Manager for the Scheme.

Name of the Fund Manager & Age	Educational Qualification	Experience	Scheme Managed
Mr. Swayam	Bachelor in	He has more than	Fund Manager :
Mangwani	Commerce from	5 years of work	Edelweiss ASEAN Equity Off-
Age: 27 Years	Mumbai	experience in the	shore Fund
	University and is	Fixed Income	Edelweiss Emerging Markets
(Managing the	a Chartered	segment. Prior to	Opportunities Equity Offshore
Scheme since	Financial	joining Edelweiss	Fund
inception of the	Analyst – US	AMC, he was	Edelweiss Europe Dynamic
scheme)	(Level 1)	associated with	Equity Offshore Fund
		ICICI Securities	Edelweiss US Value Equity
		Limited as a	Offshore Fund
		Product Manager	Edelweiss Greater China Equity
		<ul> <li>Fixed Income.</li> </ul>	OffShore Fund
		He has also been	Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan –
		associated with	Series 14
		RR Investors	Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan –

#### I INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The investment policy of the Scheme complies with the rules, regulations and guidelines laid out in SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996. As per the Regulations, specifically the Seventh Schedule, the following investment limitations are currently applicable:

1. The Scheme shall not invest more than 10% of its NAV in debt instruments comprising money market instruments and non-money market instruments issued by a single issuer which are rated not below investment grade by a credit rating agency authorised to carry out such activity under the Act. Such investment limit may be extended to 12% of the NAV of the scheme with the prior approval of the Board of Trustees and the Board of directors of the asset management company:

Provided that such limit shall not be applicable for investments in Government Securities, treasury bills and collateralized borrowing and lending obligations.

- 2. Debentures, irrespective of any residual maturity period (above or below one year), shall attract the investment restrictions as applicable for debt instruments. It is further clarified that the investment limits are applicable to all debt securities, which are issued by public bodies/institutions such as electricity boards, municipal corporations, state transport corporations etc. guaranteed by either state or central government. Government securities issued by central/state government or on its behalf by the RBI are exempt from the above investment limits.
- 3. The Scheme shall not invest more than 10% of its NAV in unrated debt instruments issued by a single issuer and the total investment in such instruments shall not exceed 25% of the NAV of the scheme. All such investments shall be made with the prior approval of the Board of Trustees and the Board of AMC.

- 4. The Scheme shall invest only in such securities which mature on or before the date of the maturity of the Scheme.
- 5. Transfer of investments from one scheme to another scheme in the Mutual Fund is permitted provided:
  - Such transfers are done at the prevailing market price for quoted instruments on spot basis (spot basis shall have the same meaning as specified by a Stock Exchange for spot transactions); and
  - The securities so transferred shall be in conformity with the investment objective of the Scheme to which such transfer has been made.
- 6. The Scheme may invest in other Schemes of the AMC or any other Mutual Fund without charging any fees, provided the aggregate inter-Scheme investment made by all the Schemes under the same management or in Schemes under management of any other Asset Management Company shall not exceed 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. No investment management fees shall be charged for investing in other schemes of the fund or in the schemes of any other Mutual Fund.
- 7. The Mutual Fund shall buy and sell securities on the basis of deliveries and shall in all cases of purchases, take delivery of relevant securities and in all cases of sale, deliver the securities: Provided that the Mutual Fund may engage in short selling of securities in accordance with the framework relating to short selling and securities lending and borrowing specified by the Board. Provided further that sale of government security already contracted for purchase shall be permitted in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India in this regard. Further, the Mutual Fund may enter into derivatives transactions in a recognized stock exchange, subject to the framework specified by the Board.
- 8. The Fund shall get the securities purchased or transferred in the name of the Fund on account of the concerned Scheme, wherever investments are intended to be of a long-term nature.
- 9. Pending deployment of funds of the Scheme in securities in terms of the investment objectives of the Scheme, the Fund may invest the funds of the Scheme in short term deposits of scheduled commercial banks or in like instruments subject to the Guidelines as may be specified by the Board.
- 10. The Scheme shall not make any investment in:
  - Any unlisted security of an associate or group company of the Sponsor; or
  - Any security issued by way of private placement by an associate or group company of the Sponsor; or
  - The listed securities of group companies of the Sponsor, which is in excess of 25% of the net assets of the Scheme of the Mutual Fund.

Further, the Scheme shall not make any investment in any fund of funds scheme.

- 11. No loans for any purpose shall be advanced by the Scheme.
- 12. The Fund shall not borrow except to meet temporary liquidity needs of the Fund for the purpose of repurchase / redemption of Units or payment of interest and dividend to the Unit holders. Provided that the Fund shall not borrow more than 20% of the net assets of the Scheme and the duration of the borrowing shall not exceed a period of 6 months.
- 13. Further as per SEBI Circular SEBI/IMD/CIR No. 1/ 91171 /07 dated April 16, 2007:
  - a. Total investment of the Scheme in Short term deposit(s) of all the Scheduled Commercial Banks put together shall not exceed 15% of the net assets. However, this limit can be raised upto 20% of the net assets with prior approval of the Board of Trustees. Further, investments in Short Term Deposits of associate and sponsor scheduled commercial banks together shall not exceed 20% of total deployment by the Mutual Fund in short term deposits.

- b. Scheme shall not invest more than 10% of the net assets in short term deposit(s), of any one scheduled commercial bank including its subsidiaries.
- c. Scheme shall not invest in short term deposit of a bank which has invested in that Scheme.

Further as per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/IMD/CIR No.7/129592/08 dated June 23, 2008, it is clarified that the said limits shall not apply to term deposits placed as margins for trading in cash and derivatives market.

The investments in short term deposits of scheduled commercial banks will be reported to the Board of Trustees along with the reasons for the investment which, interalia, would include comparison with the interest rates offered by other scheduled commercial banks. Further, the AMC shall ensure that the reasons for such investments are recorded in the manner prescribed in SEBI Circular MFD/CIR/6/73/2000 dated July 27, 2000.

- 14. Investments in derivatives shall be in lines with the norms/restrictions specified in SEBI circular no. Cir/IMD/DF/11/2010 dated August 18, 2010.
- 15. In accordance with SEBI circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/21/2012 dated September 13, 2012, CIR/IMD/DF/24/2012 dated November 19, 2012, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO//DF2/CIR/P/2016/35 dated February 15, 2016, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/IMD/DF2/CIR/P/2016/68 dated August 10, 2016 and SEBI circular no. SEBI /HO/IMD/DF2/CIR/P/2017/14 dated February 22, 2017 in case of debt schemes, the total exposure to single sector shall not exceed 25% of the net assets of the scheme. However this limit is not applicable for investments in Bank CDs, CBLO, G-Secs, T-Bills, short term deposits of scheduled commercial banks and AAA rated securities issued by Public Financial Institutions and Public Sector Banks.

Provided that an additional exposure to financial services sector (over and above the limit of 25%) not exceeding 15% of the net assets of the scheme shall be allowed by way of increase in exposure to Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) only;

Provided further that the additional exposure to such securities issued by HFCs are rated AA and above and these HFCs are registered with National Housing Bank (NHB) and the total investment/ exposure in HFCs shall not exceed 25% of the net assets of the scheme.

16. In accordance with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO//DF2/CIR/P/2016/35 dated February 15, 2016, in case of debt scheme the total exposure in a group (excluding investments in securities issued by Public Sector Units, Public Financial Institutions and Public Sector Banks) shall not exceed 20% of the net assets of the scheme. Such investment limit may be extended to 25% of the net assets of the scheme with the prior approval of the Board of Trustees.

For this purpose, a group means a group as defined under regulation 2 (mm) of SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 (Regulations) and shall include an entity, its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, its holding company and its associates.

17. The Scheme will comply with any other regulations applicable to the investments of Mutual Funds from time to time.

These investment restrictions shall be applicable at the time of investment and changes do not have to be effected merely because, owing to appreciations or depreciations in value, or by reason of the receipt of any rights, bonuses or benefits in the nature of capital or of any Schemes of arrangement or for amalgamation, reconstruction or exchange, or at any repayment or redemption or other reason outside the control of the Fund, any such limits would thereby be breached. If these limits are exceeded for reasons beyond its control, AMC shall as soon as possible take appropriate corrective action, taking into account the interests of the Unit holders.

In addition, certain investment parameters may be adopted internally by AMC, and amended from time to time, to ensure appropriate diversification / security for the Fund. The Trustee Company / AMC may alter these above stated limitations from time to time, and also to the extent the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 change, so as to permit the Schemes to make its investments in the

full spectrum of permitted investments for Mutual Funds to achieve its investment objective. As such all investments of the Schemes will be made in accordance with SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, including Schedule VII thereof.

#### J SCHEME PERFORMANCE

This scheme is a new scheme and does not have any performance track record.

#### K INVESTMENT OF SUBSCRIPTION MONEY

Pending deployment in securities as per the investment objectives of the Scheme and also taking into consideration the current SEBI Regulations, the Fund may invest subscription money received from the investors in bank deposits, or money market instruments before finalisation of the allotment of Units. The AMC, on being satisfied of the receipt of the minimum subscription amount, can commence investment out of the funds received in accordance with the investment objectives of the Scheme and as per the existing Regulations, on or after the closure of the NFO period. The income earned out of such investments would be merged with the corpus of the Scheme on completion of the allotment of the Units.

#### L INDIAN DEBT MARKETS - PILLARS OF THE INDIAN ECONOMY

The Indian Debt Market today is one of the largest in Asia, is developing rapidly buoyed by a multitude of factors including new instruments, increased liquidity, deregulation of interest rates and improved settlement systems. It can be broadly divided into:

- The government securities market or the G-Sec market consisting of debt securities issued by the central government and state government. One of the ways in which the government raises resources to finance its Gross Fiscal Deficit is through Market Borrowings. The Market Borrowing amount is decided upon at the commencement of the fiscal year. The GOI decides the overall size of the Market Borrowing Programme in consultation with Reserve Bank of India. Within this overall size, the borrowing needs of the central government and state government are accommodated. Government Securities can be issued in the form of dated securities of both the central and state governments (known as State Development Loans) and Treasury Bills (used to finance the short term financing requirements of the government), through an auction process.
- The corporate bond/non-government securities market in India comprises bonds & debentures normally issued by various corporations such as Public/Private Sector Enterprises, Public/Private Sector Banks, All India Financial Institutions, Municipal Bodies, State level undertakings etc for their normal business activities. Corporate bonds are priced at a spread over the corresponding government security depending on the level of perceived risk. This is because these bonds are not sovereign and are serviced by the entity issuing them and a carry a risk of default on the part of the entity in fulfilling its interest or principal payment obligations. These securities can be fixed or floating rate instruments/deep discount bonds/PTCs or short term money market instruments (with a maturity of upto 1 year) such as certificates of deposit, commercial papers etc.

Institutional participants such as banks, primary dealers, mutual funds, insurance companies, retirement funds, corporate etc. are the major players in the debt market.

The risks associated with any investments are - credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. While corporate papers carry credit risk due to changing business conditions, government securities are perceived to have zero credit risk. Interest rate risk is present in all debt securities and depends on a variety of macroeconomic factors.

The price and yield on various debt instruments fluctuates from time to time depending upon the macro economic situation, inflation rate, overall liquidity position, exchange rates, maturity profile, credit risk etc.

Following table exhibits various debt instruments along with indicative yields as on February 28, 2017.

Instrument	Yield Range (% per annum)
CBLO	5.70-5.90
1 month T Bill	5.90-6.05
3 month T Bill	6.00-6.15
6 month T Bill	6.10-6.20
1 year T Bill	6.15-6.25
1 month CP	6.40-6.50
3 month CP	6.75-6.95
6 month CP	6.95-7.15
1 year CP	7.25-7.45

Source: Bloomberg/Reuters

#### M INVESTMENTS BY THE AMC

Subject to the SEBI Regulations the AMC may invest, up to its net worth, either directly or indirectly in the Scheme during the NFO Period. However, the AMC shall not charge any investment management and advisory services fee on such investments in a Scheme.

#### N ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

#### (i) SCHEME PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

a) Top 10 holdings: Not Available

b) Sector wise holdings: Not Available

The Scheme is a new Scheme and does not have any Portfolio Holdings and Sector wise holdings.

#### *ii. INVESTMENT DETAILS:*

Category	Aggregate Investment (Rs. in Lakhs)
i. AMC's Board of Directors	NA
ii. Concerned scheme's Fund Manager(s)	NA
iii. Other key managerial personnel	NA

Since the Scheme is a new Scheme, the aggregate investment in the scheme is not available.

# III UNITS & OFFER

This section provides details you need to know for investing in the Scheme.

## A NEW FUND OFFER (NFO):

New Fund Offer Period	NFO For:
This is the period during which a new scheme sells its units to the investors.	Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan – Series 42 is a 36 Month Close ended Income Scheme
	NFO opens on: April 12, 2017 NFO closes on: April 17, 2017
	The Scheme, when offered for subscription, would be open for such number of days (not exceeding 15 days) as may be decided by the AMC.
	The AMC / Trustee also reserve the right to close the Schemes earlier by giving at least one day's notice.
	The AMC / Trustee reserve the right to extend the closing date of the NFO Period, subject to the condition that subscription list of the NFO shall not be kept open for more than 15 days. Any such extension shall be announced by way of a notice in one national newspaper.
New Fund Offer Price:	During the New Fund Offer, the Units will be offered at a price of
This is the price per unit that the investors have to pay to invest during the NFO.	Rs. 10 per Unit (NFO Price).
Minimum Amount for Application in the NFO	Minimum of Rs. 5,000/- and in multiples of Re. 10/- thereafter per application which includes switch-ins from other Schemes of the Edelweiss Mutual Fund.
Minimum Target amount	The minimum target amount to be raised during the NFO Period shall be Rs. 20 Crore.
	This is the minimum amount required to operate the Scheme and if this is not collected during the NFO period of the Scheme, then all the investors would be refunded the amount invested without any return. However, if AMC fails to refund the amount within 5 Business Days from the date of closure of the NFO Period, interest as specified by SEBI (currently 15% p.a.) will be paid to the investors from the expiry of fifth business day of the closure of the subscription period.
Maximum Amount to be raised (if any)	There will be no upper limit on the total corpus collected under the Scheme during the NFO Period.
This is the maximum amount which can be collected during the NFO period, as decided by the AMC.	
Plans / Options offered	In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/21/2012 dated September 13, 2012, direct investments by investors, viz. where the investment is not routed through distributors but made directly by the investors, are required to have a separate plan (i.e. Direct Plan) and

a separate NAV. Expenses such as distribution expenses, brokerage or commission payable to distributors will not be charged to the investment made via direct investment and hence the Direct Plan will have a lower expense ratio.

Based on the above, the Scheme offers a choice of two plans:

- 1. Direct Plan; and
- 2. Regular Plan

Investors subscribing under Direct Plan of the Scheme will have to indicate "Direct Plan" against the Scheme name in the application form i.e. "Edelweiss Fixed Maturity Plan - Series 42 - Direct Plan". Investors should also indicate "Direct" in the ARN column of the application form.

If the application is received incomplete with respect to not selecting Regular/Direct Plan, the application will be processed as under:

Scenario	Broker Code mentioned by the investor	Plan mentioned by the investor	Default Plan to be captured
1	Not mentioned	Not mentioned	Direct Plan
2	Not mentioned	Direct	Direct Plan
3	Not mentioned	Regular	Direct Plan
4	Mentioned	Direct	Direct Plan
5	Direct	Not mentioned	Direct Plan
6	Direct	Regular	Direct Plan
7	Mentioned	Regular	Regular Plan
8	Mentioned	Not mentioned	Regular Plan

In cases of wrong/ invalid/ incomplete ARN codes mentioned on the application form, the application shall be processed under Regular Plan. The AMC shall contact and obtain the correct ARN code within 30 calendar days of the receipt of the application form from the investor/ distributor. In case, the correct code is not received within 30 calendar days, the AMC shall reprocess the transaction under Direct Plan from the date of application without any exit load.

Each Plan under the Scheme offers a choice of two options:

- Growth Option
- Dividend Option

Under the Growth Option, no dividend will be declared and the Dividend Option offers Dividend Payout Facility, only.

**Growth Option:** No Dividend will be declared under this Option. Income / profits received / earned on the Scheme's corpus would be accumulated by the Fund as capital accretion & will remain invested in the Scheme and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value (NAV). Unit holders who opt for this Option will not receive any dividend in normal circumstances.

**Dividend Option (Payout Facility):** Under this Option, dividend will be declared subject to the availability of distributable surplus as

	computed in accordance with SEBI Regulations. Dividends, if declared, will be paid (subject to deduction of dividend distribution tax and statutory levy, if any) to those Unit holders, whose names appear in the register of Unit holders on the notified record date. AMC reserves the right to change the record date from time to time. However, it must be distinctly understood that actual declaration of dividends and frequency thereof is at the discretion of Board of Trustees. There is no assurance or guarantee to Unit holders as to the rate of dividend distribution nor that the dividends will be declared regularly, though it is the intention of the Mutual Fund to make regular dividend distribution under the Dividend Option. On payments of dividends, the NAV will stand reduced by the amount of dividend paid and the dividend distribution tax, if applicable.
Dividend Policy	Dividend Distribution Press dure
	• Dividend Distribution Procedure: SEBI Circular lays down the procedure for Declaration of Dividend which clearly says that quantum of Dividend and record date shall be fixed by the Board of Trustees and AMC shall issue a notice to the public communicating the decision about dividend including the record date, within one calendar day of the decision made by the Board of Trustees in their meeting.
	Record date shall be the date that will be considered for the purpose of determining the eligibility of investors whose name appears on the register of Unit holders. Record date shall be five calendar days from the issue of notice.
	The Trusteeship Company reserves the right to declare dividend on a regular basis. The Fund does not guarantee or assure declaration or payment of Dividend. Although the Trustees have intention to declare Dividend under Dividend Option, such declaration of Dividend if any, is subject to Scheme's performance & the availability & adequacy of distributable surplus in the Scheme at the time of declaration of such Dividend.
	Investors should note that, when the Mutual Fund declares a dividend under the Scheme, the dividend warrants shall be dispatched within 30 days of the declaration of the dividend. The requirement of giving notice & the above laid procedure shall not be compulsory for Scheme/plan/option having frequency of dividend distribution from daily upto monthly dividend.
	• Effect of Dividends: When dividends are declared and paid under the Scheme, the net assets attributable to Unit holders in the Dividend Option will stand reduced by the dividend amount subject to dividend distribution tax and statutory levy if any. The NAV of the Unit holders in the Growth Option will remain unaffected by the payment of dividend.
	Even though the asset portfolio will be un-segregated, the NAVs of the Growth Option and Dividend Option will be distinctly different

[	
	after declaration of the first dividend to the extent of distributed income, tax and statutory levy paid thereon, where applicable, and expenses relating to the distribution of dividends.
	<ul> <li>Mode of Payment of Dividends:</li> </ul>
	The Scheme proposes to pay dividend by Direct Credit or through ECS or RTGS or NEFT or any other EFT means.
	RBI offers the facility of EFT for facilitating better customer service by direct credit of dividend amount to a Unit holder's bank account through electronic credit which avoids loss of dividend in transit or fraudulent encashment. The Mutual Fund will endeavour to offer this facility for payment of dividend/repurchase proceeds to the Unit holders residing in any of the cities where such a Bank facility is available.
	The Fund is arranging with selected bankers to enable direct credits into the bank accounts of the investors at these banks. If an investor has an account with a bank with which the Fund will tie up for direct credit, the dividend amount will be credited directly to the bank account, under intimation to the Unit holder by email/SMS/post. The Mutual Fund, on a best effort basis, and after scrutinising the names of the banks where Unit holders have their accounts, will enable direct credit/RTGS/NEFT/ECS to the Unit holders' bank accounts.
	While the preferred mode of payment is through EFT route, the AMC is at the sole discretion to pay dividend by any other means (including at par cheques and demand drafts, where the EFT facility is not available in a particular city or Bank or as the Trusteeship Company or the AMC deems fit in the interest of investors.)
	All the dividend payments shall be in accordance and compliance with SEBI Regulations, as amended from time to time.
Allotment	Allotment will be completed after due reconciliation of receipt of funds for all valid applications within 5 Business Days from the closure of the NFO period. Allotment to NRIs/FIIs will be subject to RBI approval, if required. Subject to the SEBI (MF) Regulations, the Trustee may reject any application received in case the application is found invalid/incomplete or for any other reason in the Trustee's sole discretion. For investors who have given demat account details, the Units will be credited to the investor's demat account after due verification and confirmation from NSDL/CDSL of the demat account details. As the Stock Exchange(s) do not allow trading of fractional units, Units will be allotted only in integers by rounding off the Units allotted to the lower integer and the balance amount will be refunded to the investor.
	• Allotment Confirmation/Account Statement (for non-demat account holders): An Allotment Confirmation/Account statement will be sent by way of SMS and/or email and/or ordinary post, to each Unit Holder who has not provided his demat account details in the application form for subscription during the NFO. The Allotment Confirmation/Account statement, stating the number of Units allotted to the Unit Holder will be sent not later than 5 Business Days from the close of the NFO Period of the Scheme. The Account

	Statement shall be non-transferable.
	• Despatch of Account Statements to NRIs/FIIs will be subject to RBI approval, if required.
	• Allotment Advice/Holding Statement (demat account holders): For investors who have given valid demat account details at the time of NFO, Units issued by the AMC shall be credited by the Registrar to the investor's beneficiary account with the DP as per information provided in the Application Form. Such investors will receive the holding statement directly from their depository participant (DP) at such a frequency as may be defined in the Depository Act or Regulations or on specific request.
	• Normally no Unit certificates will be issued. However, if the applicant so desires, the AMC shall issue a non-transferable Unit certificate to the applicant within 30 days of the receipt of request for the certificate.
	• Consolidated Account Statement (for non-demat account holders): CAS shall also be sent to the Unit holder in whose folio transactions have taken place during that month, on or before 10 <sup>th</sup> of the succeeding month. In the event the account has more than one registered Unit holder, the first named Unit holder shall receive the CAS. In case of specific request received from investors, Mutual Fund will provide an account statement to the investors within 5 Business Days from the receipt of such request.
	The Mutual Fund reserves the right to recover from an investor any loss caused to the Scheme on account of dishonour of cheques issued by him/her/it for purchase of Units.
Refund	Refund of subscription money to applicants in the case of minimum subscription amount not being raised or applications rejected for any other reason whatsoever, will be made within 5 Business Days from the date of closure of the NFO period & all refund orders will be sent by registered post or in such other manner as permitted under Regulations. Investors should note that no interest will be payable on any subscription money so refunded within 5 Business Days. If the Mutual Fund refunds the amount after 5 Business Days, interest at the rate of 15% p.a. will be paid to the applicant and borne by the AMC for the period from the day following the date of expiry of 5 Business Days until the actual date of the refund. Refund orders will be marked "A/c. Payee only" and drawn in the name of the applicant in all other cases. In both cases, the bank name and bank account number, as specified in the application, will be mentioned in the refund order. The bank and/or collection charges, if any, will be borne by the applicant.
Who can invest This is an indicative list and you are requested to consult your financial advisor to ascertain whether the scheme is suitable to your risk profile.	The following persons are eligible and may apply for subscription to the Units of the Scheme of the Fund (subject, wherever relevant, to purchase of units of Mutual Funds being permitted and duly authorised under their respective constitutions, charter documents, corporate / other authorisations and relevant statutory provisions etc):
	1. Resident adult Indian individuals either singly or jointly (not

 exceeding three), or on an Anyone or Survivor basis;
2. Karta of Hindu Undivided Family (HUF in the name of Karta);
3. Partnership Firms in the name of any one of the
partner(constituted under the Indian partnership law) &
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP);
4. Minors (Resident or NRI) through parent / legal guardian;
5. Schemes of Mutual Funds registered with SEBI, including
schemes of Edelweiss Mutual Fund, subject to the conditions
and limits prescribed by SEBI Regulations and the Scheme
Information Document;
6. Companies, Bodies Corporate, Public Sector Undertakings
(PSU), Association of Persons (AOP) or bodies of individuals
(BOI) and societies registered under the Societies Registration
Act, 1860 (so long as the purchase of units is permitted under the represtive constitutions).
the respective constitutions); 7. Banks, including Scheduled Bank, Regional Rural Bank, Co-
<ol> <li>Banks, including Scheduled Bank, Regional Rural Bank, Co- Operative Bank etc. &amp; Financial Institutions;</li> </ol>
8. Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV) approved by appropriate
authority;
9. Religious and Charitable Trusts, Wakfs or endowments of
private trusts and Private trusts (subject to receipt of
necessary approvals as required & who are authorised to
invest in Mutual Fund schemes under their trust deeds);
10. Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) / Persons of Indian origin residing
abroad (POI) on repatriation or non repatriation basis;
11. Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) registered with
SEBI on fully repatriation basis;
12. Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) subject to the applicable
Regulations;
13. Provident / Pension / Gratuity / superannuation, such other
retirement and employee benefit and such other funds to
the extent they are permitted to invest;
14. Army, Air Force, Navy and other para-military units
and bodies created by such institutions;
15. Scientific and Industrial Research Organisations;
<ol> <li>Multilateral Funding Agencies / Bodies Corporate incorporated outside India with the permission of Government</li> </ol>
of India / Reserve Bank of India;
17. Trustee, the AMC, their Shareholders or Sponsor, their
associates, affiliates, group companies may subscribe to Units
under the Scheme;
18. Overseas financial organizations which have entered
into an arrangement for investment in India, inter-alia
with a mutual fund registered with SEBI and which
arrangement is approved by Government of India.
19. Insurers, insurance companies / corporations registered
with the Insurance Regulatory Development Authority
(subject to IRDA Circular (Ref :
IRDA/F&I/INV/CIR/074/03/2014) dated March 3, 2014
20. Any other category of individuals / institutions / body
corporate etc., so long as wherever applicable they are in
conformity with SEBI Regulations/other applicable
Regulations/the constituent documents of the applicants.
Notes:
1. Returned cheques are not liable to be presented again for collection and the accompanying application forms are liable
collection, and the accompanying application forms are liable to be rejected. In case the returned cheques are presented
to be rejected. In case the returned cheques are presented
1
----
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

the declarations/affirmations provided by the Investor(s) in the Application/ Transaction Form(s) and the documents furnished to the KRA that the Investor(s) is permitted/ authorised by the constitution document/ their Board of Directors etc. to make the investment / transact. Further, the Investor shall be liable to indemnify the Fund / AMC / Trustee / other intermediaries in case of any dispute regarding the eligibility, validity and authorization of the transactions and / or the applicant who has applied on behalf of the Investors. The Fund / AMC / Trustee reserves the right to call for such other information and documents as may be required by it in connection with the investments made by the investor.

Investors are requested to view full details on eligibility /noneligibility for investment in the Scheme mentioned in the SAI under the head "Who Can Invest" & also note that this is an indicative list and you are requested to consult your financial advisor to ascertain whether the Scheme is suitable to your risk profile.

# Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (commonly known as "FATCA"):

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act is a United States (US) federal law, aimed at prevention of tax evasion by US Citizens and Residents ("US Persons") through use of offshore accounts. The Government of India and the US have reached an agreement in substance on the terms of an Inter-Governmental Agreement ("IGA") to implement the FATCA provisions, which have become globally applicable from July 1, 2014.

Edelweiss Mutual Fund ("the Fund")/ Edelweiss Asset Management Limited ("the AMC") is classified as a FFI under the FATCA provisions, in which case the Fund / AMC is required, from time to time, to:

(i) undertake necessary due diligence process by collecting information/documentary evidence of the US/non US status of the investors;

(ii) disclose/report information as far as may be legally permitted about the holdings/investment returns pertaining to reportable accounts to the US Internal Revenue Service and/or such Indian authorities as may be specified under FATCA or other applicable laws; and

(iii) carry out such other activities as prescribed under the FATCA provisions, as amended from time to time.

FATCA due diligence will have to be directed at each investor/unit holder (including joint investors) and on being identified as a reportable person/specified US person, all the folios will be reported. Further, in case of folio with joint investors, the entire account value of investment portfolio will be attributable under each such reportable person. Investors/Unit holders would therefore be required to furnish such information to the Fund/AMC, from time to time, in order to comply with the reporting requirements stated in the IGA and or circulars/guidelines issued by SEBI/AMFI in this regard.

The impact of FATCA is relevant not only at the point of on-

boarding of the investors but also throughout the life cycle of the investor account / folio with the Fund. Hence investor(s) should immediately intimate the Fund/AMC, in case of any change in the FATCA related information provided by them at the time of initial subscription.
The Fund/AMC reserves the right to reject any application or compulsorily redeem the units held directly or beneficially in case the applicant/investor fails to furnish the relevant information and/or documentation or is found to be holding units in contravention of the FATCA provisions.
Further, in accordance with the regulatory requirements relating to FATCA/CRS read along with SEBI Circular no. CIR/MIRSD/2/2015 dated August 26, 2015 and AMFI Best practices guidelines circular no. 63/2015-16 dated September 18, 2015 regarding uniform implementation of FATCA/CRS requirements, investors are requested to ensure the following:
<ul> <li>With effect from November 1, 2015 all investors have to mandatorily provide the details and declaration pertaining to FATCA/CRS for all new accounts opened, failing which the application shall be liable to be rejected.</li> <li>For accounts opened between July 1, 2014 and October 31, 2015 and certain pre - existing accounts opened till June 30, 2014, the AMC shall reach out to the investors to seek the requisite information/declaration which has to be submitted by the investors before December 31, 2015. In case the information/declaration is not received from the investor on or before December 31, 2015, the account shall be treated as reportable account.</li> </ul>
<b>Ultimate Beneficial Ownership:</b> In accordance with SEBI Circular no. CIR/MIRSD/2/2013 dated January 24, 2013 and AMFI Best practices guidelines circular no. 62/2015-16 dated September 18, 2015, Investors may note the following:
• With effect from November 1, 2015, it is mandatory for new investors to provide beneficial ownership details as part of account opening documentation failing which the AMC shall reject the application.
• With effect from January 1, 2016 it is mandatory for existing investors/unit holders to provide beneficial ownership details, failing which the AMC may reject the transaction for additional subscription (including switches).

Who cannot invest?	The following persons/entities cannot invest in the Scheme:
	<ol> <li>Overseas Corporate Bodies pursuant to RBI A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003</li> <li>Non-Resident Indians residing in the Financial Action Task Force (FATF) declared Non Compliant Countries or Territories (NCCTs)</li> <li>United States Person (US Person) as defined under the extant laws of the United States of America and persons residing in Canada.</li> <li>The Fund reserves the right to include / exclude new / existing categories of investors to invest in the Scheme from time to time. In case the application is found invalid / incomplete or for any other reason Trustee feels that the application is incomplete, the Trustee at its sole discretion may reject the application, subject to SEBI Regulations and other prevailing statutory regulations, if any.</li> </ol>
Where can you submit the filled up applications.	Duly completed application form for purchase of Units under the Scheme during the NFO period along with the instrument for payment may be submitted at any of the Official Point of Acceptance/ISC of the AMC or to the Registrars: Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd., Unit - Edelweiss Mutual Fund, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31 & 32, Financial District, Gachibowli, Hyderabad – 500032, Tel: 040-4030 8000.
	For any other investor related query you may call us at our toll free number 1800 425 0090 (for MTNL/BSNL land line) and/or non toll free number 04023310090 (for non MTNL/BSNL land line, mobile users and investors outside India) or email us at EMFHelp@edelweissfin.com.
How to Apply	For further details please refer the back cover page of this Document. Investors are requested to refer to the SAI and Application form for instructions.
Listing	The units of the Scheme will be listed on NSE.
Special facilities available during the NFO	It may also list on any other recognized Stock Exchange/s subsequently as may be decided by the AMC from time to time. Applications Supported by Blocked Amount ("ASBA"): Investors have an option to subscribe to units of the Scheme during the NFO period under the Applications Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility.
	Thus, apart from the current process of accepting payment for subscription through cheques/demand drafts, investors also have the ASBA facility as an additional mode of payment. Banks which provide this facility and are empanelled with SEBI shall extend the same facility to all eligible investors subscribing to the NFO of the Scheme.
	Investors are requested to refer to SAI for further details on the ASBA facility.
	Stock Exchange Infrastructure Facility: During NFO of the Scheme the AMC may make available facility to

	investors to subscribe to the Units of the Scheme through Mutual Fund Services System (MFSS) of the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and through BSE Stock Exchange Platform for
	Allotment and Repurchase of Mutual Funds (BSE StAR MF System) of BSE Limited. For more information on this facility, please refer to SAI.
	Switching Options: Unit holders will be able to invest in the NFO of the Scheme by switching part or all of their unit holdings held in the respective plan(s) / option(s) of the existing scheme established by the Mutual Fund. Application for switch of units from existing schemes to the Scheme(s) will be accepted upto 3.00 p.m. on the last day of the NFO of the Scheme.
	This option will be useful to unit holders who wish to alter the allocation of their investment among the scheme of the Mutual Fund (subject to completion of lock-in period, if any, of the units of the scheme from where the units are being switched) in order to meet their changed investment needs.
	The switch will be effected by way of a redemption of units from the scheme and a reinvestment of the redemption proceeds in Scheme and accordingly, to be effective, the switch must comply with the redemption rules of the scheme and the issue rules of the Scheme (e.g. as to the minimum number of units that may be redeemed or issued, exit load etc). The price at which the units will be switched-out of the scheme will be based on the redemption price and the proceeds will be invested in Scheme at Rs. 10/- per unit.
The policy regarding reissue of repurchased units, including the maximum extent, the manner of reissue, the entity (the scheme or the AMC) involved in the same.	Unit holders can liquidate their investments either by transferring of Units through stock exchange where the Units of the Scheme are listed or redeeming/repurchasing Units at the time of maturity.
Restrictions, if any, on the right to freely retain or dispose of units being offered.	The Units of the Scheme are not transferable except Units of the Scheme held in electronic (demat) mode. In view of the same, additions / deletions of names will not be allowed under any folio of the Scheme. However, the said provisions will not be applicable in case a person (i.e. a transferee) becomes a holder of the Units by operation of law or upon enforcement of pledge, then the AMC shall, subject to production of such satisfactory evidence and submission of such documents, proceed to effect the transfer, if the intended transferee is otherwise eligible to hold the Units of the Scheme.
	<ul> <li>SEBI Circular no. SEBI / HO/IMD/DF2/CIR/P/2016/57 dated May 31, 2016 has laid down the following conditions, in case the AMC wish to impose restrictions on redemption:</li> <li>a. Restrictions may be imposed when there are circumstances leading to a systematic crisis or event that severely constricts market liquidity or the efficient functioning of market such as: <ol> <li>Liquidity issues</li> <li>Market failures, exchange closure</li> <li>Operational issues</li> </ol> </li> <li>b. Restriction on redemption may be imposed for a specified period of time not exceeding 10 working days in any 90 days period.</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>c. Any imposition of restriction would require specific approval of Board of AMCs and Trustee and the same should be informed to SEBI immediately.</li> <li>d. When restriction on redemption is imposed, the following procedure shall be applied: <ol> <li>No redemption request upto INR 2 lakh shall be subject to such restriction.</li> <li>When redemption request are above INR 2 lakhs, AMCs shall redeem the first INR 2 lakh without such restriction and remaining part over and above INR 2 lakh shall be subject to</li> </ol> </li> </ul>
Bank Mandate	<ul> <li>For details please refer to paragraph on "Right to limit redemption, "suspension of purchase and / or redemption of Units" &amp; paragraph on "Lien &amp; pledge" under SAI.</li> <li>It is mandatory for every applicant to provide the name of the bank,</li> </ul>
	branch, address, account type and number as per requirements laid down by SEBI and any other requirements stated in the Application Form. Applications without these details will be treated as incomplete. Such incomplete applications will be rejected. The Registrar/AMC may ask the investor to provide a blank cancelled cheque or its photocopy for the purpose of verifying the bank account number.
Static details	<ul> <li>The details provided by investors in the application form for subscribing to Units should be same as the details registered with the DP.</li> <li>In the event of any conflict, the details registered with the DP will prevail.</li> <li>Incase any particular detail is not registered with the DP, the details in the application form will be considered.</li> <li>In the event of mismatch in the mode of holding as mentioned in the application form vis-à-vis details with the DP, the application is liable to be rejected.</li> </ul>
Multiple Bank Account Registration	The Mutual Fund offers a facility to register multiple bank accounts for pay-in & payout purposes and designate one of the registered bank account as "Default Bank Account". Individuals, HUFs, Sole proprietor firms can register upto five bank accounts and a non- individual investor can register upto ten bank accounts in a folio. This facility can be availed by using a designated "Bank Accounts Registration Form" available at Investor Service Centers and Registrar and Transfer Agent's offices. In case of new investors, the bank account mentioned on the purchase application form, used for opening the folio, will be treated as default bank account till the investor gives a separate request to register multiple bank accounts and change the default bank account to any of other registered bank account. Registered bank accounts may also be used for verification of pay-ins (i.e. receiving of subscription funds) to ensure that a third party payment is not used for mutual fund subscription. Default Bank Account will be used for all dividends and redemptions payouts unless investor specifies one of the existing registered bank account in the redemption request for receiving redemption proceeds. However, in case a Unit holder does not specify the default account, the Mutual Fund reserves the right to designate any of the registered bank accounts as default bank account.

Consequent to introduction of "Multiple Bank Accounts Fac registering a new bank account will require a cooling period more than 10 days from the date of receipt of request. I interim, in case of any dividend/ redemption/ maturity payou same would be credited in the existing registered bank accoun	of not n the t, the
--	---------------------------

#### **B** ONGOING OFFER DETAILS

Not applicable.
Being a close ended Scheme, investors can subscribe to Units of the Scheme through the Mutual Fund/AMC only during the NFO period. However, once the Units are listed, an investor can buy/sell Units of the Scheme on a continuous basis on the NSE and/or any other Stock Exchange like any other publicly traded stock.
The Units of the Scheme will not be available for subscriptions / switch-in after the closure of NFO Period. However the Units can be traded on the Stock Exchange post listing.
No redemption/repurchase of units shall be allowed prior to the Maturity Date of the Scheme. Investors wishing to exit may do so by selling their units through stock exchanges. The Scheme shall be fully redeemed on the Maturity Date/Final Redemption Date and redemption proceeds shall be dispatched within 10 Business Days, subject to availability of all relevant documents and details.
<b>For Purchases including switch-ins:</b> The Units of the Scheme will not be available for subscriptions / switch-in after the closure of NFO Period.
<b>For Redemptions including switch-outs:</b> No redemption/repurchase of units shall be allowed prior to the Maturity Date of the scheme. Investors holding units in demat mode and wishing to exit may do so by selling their units through Stock Exchanges. The Scheme shall be fully redeemed on the Maturity date and redemption proceeds shall be dispatched within 10 Business Days, subject to availability of all relevant documents and details.
The Units will not be available for subscription/switch-in after the closure of the NFO period.
Redemption/Switch-out is not permitted during the term of the Scheme. However, once the Units are listed, the Units can be sold by making such request in the prescribed form to the DP.
Switch-out applications from the Scheme(s) to any other scheme(s) of the Mutual Fund on the Maturity Date may be submitted at any of the Investor Service Center of the AMC.
No redemption/repurchase of units shall be allowed prior to the maturity of the Scheme. Investors wishing to exit may do so by selling their Units through stock exchanges. The Scheme shall be fully redeemed on the date of maturity and redemption proceeds shall be dispatched within 10 business days, subject to availability of all relevant documents and details. Not applicable.

Listing	The Units of the Schemes will be listed on the Capital Market Segment of NSE within 5 Business Days of allotment.
	The Mutual Fund may at its sole discretion list the Units under the Scheme on any other recognized Stock Exchange(s) at a later date. The Trustee shall issue an addendum for listing of Units on any other recognised Stock Exchange in India, and a public notice to this effect will be given in two newspapers and also displayed at the Investor Service Centres. All regulatory procedures will be followed in this regard.
	An investor can buy/sell Units on a continuous basis on NSE and/or any other Stock Exchange(s) on which the Units are listed during the trading hours like any other publicly traded stock, until the date of issue of notice by the AMC on its website for fixing the record date for determining the Unit holders whose name(s) appear on the list of Beneficial Owners as per the Depository's (NSDL/CDSL) records for the purpose of redemption of Units on Maturity/Final Redemption Date. The trading of Units on NSE and/or any other Stock Exchange(s) on which the Units are listed will automatically get suspended from the date of issuance of the said notice and also no off-market trades shall be permitted by the Depositories.
	The price of the Units in the market will depend on demand and supply at that point of time. There is no minimum investment, although Units are purchased in round lots of 1.
	As the Stock Exchange(s) do not allow trading of fractional units, Units may be allotted only in integers by rounding off the Units allotted to the lower integer and the balance amount may be refunded to the investor.
	Transaction Cost: Though there will be no entry/exit load for buying/selling the Units from/to the secondary market, the investors will have to bear the other costs related to transacting in the secondary market, e.g. brokerage, service tax, etc.
	The Scheme will be de-listed after their tenures. The AMC/Trustee will initiate the delisting procedure prior to the date of maturity. The Unit holders will not be able to trade on the stock exchange once the Schemes are delisted.
Special Products available	None
Account Statements	For investors who opt to hold Units in Physical Form (Non-demat form):
	<ul> <li>On receipt of valid application for subscription/transaction request, an Allotment Confirmation will be sent by way of SMS and/or email within 5 Business Days from the date of receipt of application/transaction request to the Unit holder's registered mobile number and/or email address. Unit holders who have not registered their email address/mobile number with the Fund will receive a physical Account Statement giving details of the transaction.</li> <li>A Consolidated Account Statement (CAS) for each calendar month</li> </ul>
	to the Unit holder(s) in whose folio(s) transaction(s) has/have taken place during the month on or before 10th of the succeeding

month shall be sent by mail/email.
• The Unit holder may request for a physical Account Statement by writing/calling the AMC/ISC/R&T. The Mutual Fund/ AMC shall
dispatch an Account Statement within 5 Business Days from the
date of the receipt of request from the Unit holder.
• In the event the account has more than one registered holder, the
first named Unit holder shall receive the CAS/ Account Statement.
• The transactions viz. purchase, redemption, switch, dividend
payout, etc., carried out by the Unit holders shall be reflected in
<ul> <li>the CAS on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN).</li> <li>The CAS shall not be received by the Unit holders for the folio(s)</li> </ul>
not updated with PAN details. The Unit holders are therefore
requested to ensure that the folio(s) are updated with their PAN.
• For folios not included in CAS (due to non availability of PAN),
EAML shall issue Account Statement to such Unit holders on a
monthly basis, pursuant to any financial transaction in their folios,
on or before tenth day of succeeding month by way of email to
the registered email address and if the same is not available with EAML, a physical statement will be sent.
<ul> <li>Unit holders who receive Account Statements by e-mail may</li> </ul>
download the documents after receiving the same from the Fund.
Should the Unit holder experience any difficulty in accessing the
electronically delivered documents, the Unit holder shall promptly
advise the Fund to enable the Fund to make the delivery through
alternate means. It is deemed that the Unit holder is aware of all security risks including possible third party interception of the
documents and contents of the documents becoming known to
third parties.
For Investors who opt to hold Units in Demat Form:
In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of
In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with
In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated
In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single
In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund
In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories,</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories,</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat accounts then CAS with holding details shall be sent to the</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat accounts then CAS with holding details shall be sent to the investor on half yearly basis.</li> <li>In case of demat accounts with nil balance and no transactions in securities and in Mutual Fund folios, the Depository shall send</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat accounts then CAS with holding details shall be sent to the investor on half yearly basis.</li> <li>In case of demat accounts with nil balance and no transactions in securities and in Mutual Fund folios, the Depository shall send holding statement in terms of regulations applicable to the</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat accounts then CAS with holding details shall be sent to the investor on half yearly basis.</li> <li>In case of demat accounts with nil balance and no transactions in securities and in Mutual Fund folios, the Depository shall send holding statement in terms of regulations applicable to the Depositories.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat accounts then CAS with holding details shall be sent to the investor on half yearly basis.</li> <li>In case of demat accounts with nil balance and no transactions in securities and in Mutual Fund folios, the Depository shall send holding statement in terms of regulations applicable to the Depositories.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>In order to enable a single consolidated view of all the investments of an investor in Mutual Fund and securities held in demat form with Depositories, SEBI vide its circular no. CIR/MRD/DP/31/2014 dated November 12, 2014 had advised to generate and dispatch a single Consolidated Account Statement for investors having Mutual Fund investments and holding demat accounts. Accordingly,</li> <li>Investors shall receive a single CAS from the Depository.</li> <li>Consolidation of account statement shall be done on the basis of Permanent Account Number (PAN). In case of multiple holding, it shall be PAN of the first holder and pattern of holding.</li> <li>In case an investor has multiple accounts across two Depositories, the Depository with whom the account has been opened earlier will be the default Depository.</li> <li>The CAS shall be generated on a monthly basis.</li> <li>If there is any transaction in any of the Demat accounts of the investor or in any of his Mutual Fund folios, Depositories shall send the CAS within ten days from the month end. In case there is no transaction in any of the mutual fund folios and demat accounts then CAS with holding details shall be sent to the investor on half yearly basis.</li> <li>In case of demat accounts with nil balance and no transactions in securities and in Mutual Fund folios, the Depository shall send holding statement in terms of regulations applicable to the Depositories.</li> </ul>

	to receive CAS through e-mail, option shall be given to such
	<ul> <li>Investor to receive the CAS in physical form at the address registered with the Depository.</li> <li>Investors who do not wish to receive CAS sent by Depositories have an option to indicate their negative consent. Such investors may contact the Depositories to opt out.</li> <li>The dispatch of CAS by the Depositories would constitute compliance by the AMC/the Fund with the requirement under Regulation 36(4) of SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996.</li> </ul>
	Half Yearly Consolidated Account Statement:
	* A consolidated account statement detailing holding across all Schemes at the end of every six months (i.e. September/March), on or before 10th day of succeeding month, to all such Unit holders in whose folios no transaction has taken place during that period shall be sent by mail/email.
	* The half yearly CAS will be sent by e-mail to the Unit holders whose e-mail address is registered with the Fund, unless a specific request is made to receive in physical.
	* Unit holders who receive account statements by e-mail may download the documents after receiving e-mail from the Fund. Should the Unit holder experience any difficulty in accessing the electronically delivered documents, the Unit holder shall promptly advise the Fund to enable the Fund to make the delivery through alternate means. It is deemed that the Unit holder is aware of all security risks including possible third party interception of the documents and contents of the documents becoming known to third parties.
Dividend	The dividend warrants shall be dispatched to the Unit holders within 30 days of the date of declaration of the dividend, if any
Redemption/Repurchase Proceeds	No redemption/repurchase of units shall be allowed prior to the maturity of the scheme. Investors holding Units in demat mode and wishing to exit may do so through stock exchange mode.
	On maturity of the scheme, the outstanding Units shall be redeemed and proceeds will be paid to such Unit holders, whose names appear in the Statement of Beneficiary Position as may be received from the Depositories on the record date or in the records of Unit holders maintained by Registrar and Transfer Agent with respect to Unit holders holding Units in physical form.
	In case the Units are held in the names of more than one Unit holder, the Redemption proceeds will be paid only to the first named holder.
	In case of the Units on which any lien or encumbrance is marked and such lien or encumbrance is subsisting on the date of maturity, the Unit holder will be required to procure a release of their lien/encumbrance pending which, the maturity proceeds will not be paid. The Unit holder shall not be entitled for any interest or compensation for any delayed or non-payment of the maturity proceeds till such time the Unit holder provides proof of the release of the lien/encumbrance to the satisfaction of the Mutual Fund.
	In case the Maturity Date falls on a non -business day or if the banks / stock exchanges / Depositories remain closed on account of strike or

Delay in payment of redemption /	any other unforeseen reason on the Maturity Date, then the Scheme will mature and the Units will be redeemed on the next Business Day. AMC will endeavor to credit the redemptions payouts directly to the designated Bank A/c of the Unit holders of the Schemes through any of the available electronic mode (i.e. RTGS / NEFT / Direct Credit). AMC reserves the right to use any of the above modes of payment as deemed appropriate for all folios where the required information is available.
repurchase proceeds	Days of the Maturity Date, interest will be paid @ 15% per annum or such other rate as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time, from the 11th day onwards.
Mode of Payment	(a) For Subscription:
	As an investor friendly measure, the AMC will prefer to receive subscription from investors by EFT means like RTGS, NEFT, Wire Transfer, Electronic Clearing System (ECS), etc as defined under EFT definition above. Unit holders having a bank account with certain banks, with which the Mutual Fund would have an arrangement from time to time, may avail the facility of Direct Debit to their account for subscription of the Units of the Scheme. The AMC may allow any other mode of payment for subscription, in the interest of investors.
	An investor can subscribe to the NFO through Applications Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility by applying for the Units offered under the Plan(s)/Option(s) of the Scheme(s) in the ASBA Application Form and for procedure. For details please refer SAI.
	(b) Payment of redemption proceeds:
	The Fund proposes to pay redemption proceeds in the following manner:
	a) Direct credit of redemption proceeds to the bank account of Unit holders: The Fund has arrangements with select banks, to enable direct credits of redemption proceeds into the bank accounts of the investors at these banks. The names of such banks will be intimated to the Unit holders subsequently.
	As per the directive issued by SEBI, it is mandatory for an investor to declare his / her bank account number and accordingly, investors are requested to give their bank account details in the application form. The Mutual Fund, on a best effort basis, and after scrutinizing the names of the banks where Unit holders have their accounts, will allow direct credit to the Unit holders' bank accounts.
	b) Redemption proceeds can be routed through Electronic Fund Transfer systems like RTGS or NEFT by the AMC.
	c) While the preferred mode of payment is through Direct Credit or EFT route, the AMC reserves the right to send the redemption proceeds by any other means in the interest of investors if it deems fit.
	(c) In case of NRIs & FIIs:
	In terms of Schedule 5 of Notification No.FEMA20/2000 issued in May 2000, the RBI has granted general permission to NRIs and FIIs to purchase, on a repatriation basis, Units of domestic Mutual Fund subject to conditions mentioned therein. Further, the general permission has also been granted to NRIs and FIIs to sell the Units to

	the Mutual Fund for repurchase or for the payment of maturity proceeds provided that the Units have been purchased in accordance with the conditions set out in the aforesaid notification. For the purpose of this Para, the term "Mutual Funds" has same meaning as in Clause (23 D) of Section 10 of the Income-Tax Act 1961.	
	Note:	
	<ol> <li>The AMC will prefer to receive or make payment through Electronic Fund Transfer route &amp; only in exceptional situations accept or make payment through any other means.</li> <li>In the normal course cash, Demand Drafts, money orders, outstation cheques / outstation drafts, post dated cheques and postal orders are liable to be rejected. However, if the AMC accepts valid applications with outstation cheques/ demand drafts not payable at par at a place where the application is received, closing NAV of the day on which outstation cheques / demand drafts is credited shall be applicable.</li> <li>Any remittance or redemption proceeds to NRI/FIIs will be subject to the prevailing RBI /any other regulatory requirements in force from time to time.</li> <li>For further details please refer SAI.</li> </ol>	
Transferability of Units	On listing, the Units of the scheme held in dematerialized form woul be transferable. Transfers should be only in favour of transferees wh are eligible for holding Units under the Scheme. The AMC shall not b bound to recognize any other transfer. For effecting the transfer of Units held in electronic form, the Unit holders would be required t lodge delivery instructions for transfer of Units with the DP in th requisite form as may be required from time to time and the transfer will be effected in accordance with such rules/regulations as may b in force governing transfer of securities in dematerialized mode.	
	If a person becomes a holder of the Units consequent to operation of law, or upon enforcement of a pledge, the Fund will, subject to production of satisfactory evidence, effect the transfer, if the transferee is otherwise eligible to hold the Units. Similarly, in cases of transfers taking place consequent to death, insolvency etc., the transferee's name will be recorded by the Fund subject to production of satisfactory evidence.	

### C PERIODIC DISCLOSURES & OTHER INFORMATION

Net Asset Value	The AMC will calculate and disclose the first NAVs of the scheme not later than 5 Business days from the date of allotment. NAVs will be calculated up to four decimal places.
This is the value	Subsequently, the Mutual Fund shall declare the Net Asset Value of the scheme on every
per unit of the	Business Day on AMFI's website www.amfiindia.com by 9.00 p.m. on the day of declaration of
scheme on a	the NAV and also on their website. NAV shall also be communicated to Stock Exchanges where
particular day.	the units of the scheme are listed.
You can ascertain	
the value of your	In case of any delay, the reasons for such delay would be explained to AMFI and SEBI by the
investments by	next day. If the NAVs are not available before commencement of business hours on the
multiplying the	following day due to any reason, Mutual Fund shall issue a press release providing reasons and
NAV with your	explaining when the Mutual Fund would be able to publish the NAVs.
unit balance.	
	The NAV shall be published at least in two daily newspapers every day in accordance with SEBI
	Regulations. The information on NAV of the scheme may be obtained by the unit holders, on
	any day by calling the office of the AMC or any of the ISCs at various locations.

Monthly Portfolio disclosure	The Fund/AMC will disclose the portfolio (along with ISIN) as on the last day of the month on its website <u>www.edelweissmf.com</u> on or before the tenth day of the succeeding month in a user-friendly and downloadable format.					
Half yearly Disclosures: Portfolio / Financial Results This is a list of securities where the corpus of the scheme is currently invested. The market value of these investments is also stated in portfolio disclosures.	In accordance with the Regulation, Edelweiss Mutual Fund shall publish a complete statement of the Scheme portfolio and the unaudited financial results, within one month from the close of each half year (i.e. 31st March and 30th September), in the prescribed format as per SEBI circular by way of an advertisement at least, in one National English daily and one regional newspaper in the language of the region where the head office of the Mutual Fund is located. The Mutual Fund may opt to send the portfolio to all Unit holders in lieu of the advertisement. As required under the regulations, the Mutual Fund shall also disclose the holdings in the Scheme's portfolio on its website before the expiry of one month from the closure of each half-year.					
Half Yearly Results						before the expiry of one month
Annual Report	from the close of each half year that is on 31st March and on 30th September, publish its unaudited financial results in one national English daily newspaper and in a regional newspaper published in the language of the region where the Head Office of Edelweiss Mutual Fund is situated and EMF will also display it on its website. As per SEBI Regulation, Scheme wise annual report or an abridged summary thereof shall be					
Annual Report	sent in the following manner:					
	<ul> <li>By email to the Unit holders whose email address is available with the AMC/Fund.</li> <li>In physical form to the Unit holders whose email address is not available with the AMC/Fund and/or in case of receipt of specific request from the Unit holders for a physical copy.</li> <li>The scheme wise annual report or an abridged summary thereof shall be sent by mail/e-mail not later than four months from the date of closure of the relevant accounting year (i.e. 31st March each Year). The physical copy of the same shall be made available to the investors at</li> </ul>					
	the registered office of the AMC.					
	A link of the scheme annual report or abridged summary thereof shall be displayed prominently on the website of the Fund and shall also be displayed on the website of Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI).					
Associate Transactions	Please refer to the Statement of Additional Information.					
Taxation						
The inform	_		Resident		sident	Mutual Fund
The information is provided for	Tax on Distribu	Dividend uted	Investors	investors		25% on income distributed
general	DISTRIDU	ilea	Nil	Nil		25% on income distributed to any person being an
information only.						individual or HUF.
However, in view						
of the individual						30% on income distributed
nature of the						to any other person.
implications, each						The basic rates for
investor is advised						Dividend Distribution Tax
to consult his or						shall be first grossed up
her own tax						and then shall be increased
advisors/authoris						by surcharge of 12%, and

ed dealers with				education cess &
respect to the				education cess & secondary and higher
specific amount of				education cess of 3% shall
tax and other				be levied for all categories
implications				of Tax Payers.
arising out of his	Tax on Capital	Resident	FII's / Overseas	Mutual Fund
or her	Gains:	Individuals &	Financial	
participation in		HUF	Organisations	
the schemes.	Long Term	20% with	10% u/s. 115E	Not Applicable
		Indexation		
	<u>Short term</u>	Applicable	30%	
		Slab Rates		
		Partnership	Non resident	
	Long Term	Firms	Indians	
		20% with	20%	
		Indexation		
	Short term	20%	Applicable Slab	
	Short term	30%	Applicable Slab Rates	
		Indian		
			Foreign	
	Long term	Companies 20% with	Companies 20%	
	<u></u>	Indexation	20%	
		Παεχατιοπ		
	Short term	30% (25%	40%	
		for domestic	4070	
		companies		
		having total		
		turnover/gro		
		ss receipts up		
		to Rs.50 crore		
		during		
		financial year		
		('FY') 2015-		
		16 as		
		proposed in		
		Union Budget		
		2017)		
	Note 1: In case of ca	pital Gains Tax, t	the tax rate would be	increased by a surcharge of:
	(a) 7% in case of d	omestic corpora	te unit holders whe	re the income exceeds Rs.1
	crore but is less than	10 crores and 12	2% where it exceeds	Rs. 10 crores.
	(b) 2% in case of foreign corporate unit holders where the income exceeds Rs. 1 crore but is less than 10 crores surcharge of 2% shall be levied and at the rate of 5% where it exceeds Rs. 10 crores.			
				uthorities at the rate of 10%
	where the income exceeds Rs. 50 lakhs but does not exceed Rs. 1 crore and 15% where income exceeds Rs. 1 crore.			
	(d) in case of Firms,	Co-operative So	cieties at the rate of	12% where income exceeds

	Rs. 1 crore.
	Further, education cess @2% and Secondary and higher education cess @ 1% is applicable for all categories of Tax Payers.
	Note 2: Non Equity Oriented Fund will not attract securities transaction tax (STT).
	Note 3: In case if the Income is treated as Business Income, then the relevant Income <b>Tax provisions would be applicable.</b>
	For Further details please refer Tax benefit section in the SAI.
Investor services	Investors can enquire about NAVs, Unit Holdings, Valuation, Dividends, etc or lodge any service request including change in the name, address, designated bank account number and bank branch, loss of Account Statement / Unit Certificates, etc. to Registrars - Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd., Unit - Edelweiss Mutual Fund, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot number 31 & 32, Financial District, Gachibowli, Hyderabad – 500032, Tel: 040-4030 8000. For any other investor related query you may call us at our toll free number 1800 425 0090 (for MTNL/BSNL land line) and/or non toll free number +91 40 23001181 (for non MTNL/BSNL land line, mobile users and investors outside India) or email us at EMFHelp@edelweissfin.com.
	It should be noted that for folios with transactions of Rs. 50,000 and above/ and any investor who has provided KYC confirmation issued by CVL or other KRAs, all details of the investor in the Edelweiss Mutual Fund records will be replaced by the details given by the investor to the CVL/KRA in the KYC Application Form. Any change in details like change of Name / Address / Status /Signature, etc. should be given by such Investor, who has provided KYC Confirmation, directly to CVL in the prescribed manner. Alternatively, the Unit holder can call at the EAML branch office for any services / information. Some service requests can be processed only upon receipt of a written request with required supporting documents. In order to protect confidentiality of information, the service representatives at our branches/ ISC's may require personal information of the investor for verification of his / her identity.
	Unit holder's grievances should be addressed to Investor Services Centres (ISC's) at the EAML branch offices, or Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd (KCPL) Investor Service Centres. All grievances will then be forwarded to the Registrar, if required, for necessary action. The complaints will be closely monitored /followed up with the Registrar to ensure timely redressal.
	EAML will at all times endeavour to handle transactions efficiently and to resolve any investor grievances promptly. A comprehensive complaint management system is in place for managing complaints with features for tracking each complaint through its lifecycle from recording and initiation to investigation, reporting, and closure - following the appropriate process to ensure that nothing slips through the cracks enabling EAML to conduct root cause analysis and trigger corrective and preventive action. There is a built in customised workflow process as well as assignment and escalation process to EAML officials.
	Investors can also address their queries/grievances to Mr. Mayur Jadhav, Senior Manager - Investor Services at Edelweiss Mutual Fund: Tower 3, Wing B, Ground Floor, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla(W), Mumbai- 400070 Contact Details: Tel. No. (022) 022-40979900 / 40979949 / 40979821 Fax No. (022) 40979878 E-mail id: EMFHelp@edelweissfin.com

#### D COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Units will be determined as of every Business Day and for such other days as may be required for the purpose for transaction of Units. The NAV shall be calculated in accordance with the following formula, or such other formula as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Market or Fair Value of the Scheme's Investments+ Receivables+ Accrued Income+ Other Assets- Accrued Expenses- Payables- Other Liabilities

NAV =

#### Number of Units Outstanding

The NAV of the Scheme will be calculated and declared upto 4 decimal places & the fourth decimal will be rounded off higher to next digit if the fifth decimal is or more than 5 i.e., if the NAV is 10.12345 it will be rounded off to 10.1235. NAVs of the Growth Option and Dividend Option will be different after the declaration of the first dividend.

#### IV. FEES AND EXPENSES

This section outlines the expenses that will be charged to the Scheme.

#### A. NEW FUND OFFER (NFO) EXPENSES

These expenses are incurred for the purpose of various activities related to the NFO like sales and distribution fees, marketing and advertising, registrar expenses, printing and stationary, bank charges etc. The New Fund Offer expenses in relation to the Scheme will be borne by the AMC/ Trusteeship Company/ Sponsor.

#### B. ANNUAL SCHEME RECURRING EXPENSES

These are the fees and expenses for operating the Scheme. These expenses include Investment Management and Advisory Fee charged by the AMC, Registrar and Transfer Agents' fee, marketing and selling costs etc. as given in the table below:

The AMC has estimated the following recurring expenses of the daily net assets of the Scheme that will be charged to the Scheme as expenses. The total expenses may be more or less than as specified in the table below. For the actual current expenses being charged, the investor should refer to the website of the Mutual Fund. The mutual fund would update the current expense ratios on the website within two business days mentioning the effective date of the change:.

Expense Head	% of daily Net Assets	
Investment Management and Advisory Fees		
Trustee fee		
Audit fees		
Custodian fees		
RTA Fees		
Marketing & Selling expense		
Cost related to investor communications		
Cost of fund transfer from location to location		
Cost of providing account statements and dividend redemption cheques and		
warrants		
Costs of statutory Advertisements		
Cost towards investor education & awareness (at least 2 bps)		
Brokerage & transaction cost over and above 0.12% and 0.05% for cash and		
derivative market trades, respectively ^		
Service tax on expenses other than investment and advisory fees		
Service tax on brokerage and transaction cost		
Other Expenses*		
Maximum total expense ratio (TER) permissible under Regulation 52 (6) (c) (i)	2.25% pa	
and (6) (a)		
Additional expenses for gross new inflows from specified cities	Upto 0.30%	
^ As per SEBI Circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/24/2012 dated November 19, 2012, the	-	
transaction cost incurred for the purpose of execution of trade may be capitalized		
0.12% for cash market transactions and 0.05% for derivatives transactions. Any p		
brokerage and transaction cost, over and above the said 0.12% for cash market t		
0.05% in case of derivatives transactions may be charged to the scheme within the maximum limit		
of Total Expense Ratio as prescribed under Regulation 52 (6) of the SEBI (MF) Regulations. Any		
expenditure in excess of the said prescribed limit shall be borne by the AMC/Trust		
*Subject to the Regulations and as permitted under Regulation 52 of SEBI (MF) Re		
any other expenses which are directly attributable to the Scheme may be charged with the		
approval of the Trustee within the overall limits as specified in the Regulations.		
The purpose of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding the value of table is to assist the investor in understanding table is to assist table is ta	arious costs and	

The purpose of the above table is to assist the investor in understanding the various costs and expenses that an investor in the Scheme will bear directly or indirectly. These estimates have

been made in good faith by AMC and are subject to change inter se. The total recurring expenses that can be charged to the Scheme will be subject to limits prescribed from time to time under the SEBI Regulations. Expenses over and above the limits prescribed under the SEBI Regulations shall be borne by AMC or by the trustee or sponsors.

The aforesaid expenses are fungible within the overall maximum limit prescribed under SEBI Regulations. This means that mutual fund can charge expenses within overall limits, without any internal cap on the aforesaid expenses head

#### Expenses under Regulation 52 (6):

The recurring expenses which will be charged to the Scheme (including the Investment Management and Advisory Fees) under Regulation 52(6) are as follows:

- On the first Rs. 100 crores of the daily net assets 2.25%
- On the next Rs. 300 crores of the daily assets 2.00%
- On the next Rs. 300 crores of the daily net assets 1.75%
- On the balance of the assets 1.50%

#### Additional Expenses under Regulation 52 (6A):

- 1. To improve the geographical reach of the Fund in smaller cities/towns as may be specified by SEBI from time to time, expenses not exceeding of 0.30 % p.a. of daily net assets, if the new inflows from such cities (i.e. beyond Top 15 cities\*) are at least:
  - (i) 30 % of gross new inflows in the Scheme, or;
  - (ii) 15 % of the average assets under management (year to date) of the Scheme, whichever is higher:

In case the inflows from beyond Top 15 cities\* is less than the higher of (i) or (ii) above, such additional expenses on daily net assets of the Scheme shall be charged on proportionate basis. The expenses so charged under this clause shall be utilised for distribution expenses incurred for bringing inflows from such cities.

Further, the additional expense charged on account of new inflows from beyond Top 15 cities\* shall be credited back to the Scheme, in case the said inflows are redeemed within a period of 1 year from the date of investment.

\*The Top 15 cities shall mean top 15 cities based on Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI) data on 'AUM by Geography – Consolidated Data for Mutual Fund Industry' as at the end of the previous financial year.

2. Brokerage and transactions costs incurred for the purpose of execution of trades and are included in the cost of investments shall be charged to the Scheme in addition to the limits on total expenses prescribed under Regulation 52(6) and will not exceed 0.12% in case of cash market transactions and 0.05% in case of derivatives transactions.

As per SEBI Circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/24/2012 dated November 19, 2012, the brokerage and transaction cost incurred for the purpose of execution of trade may be capitalized to the extent of 0.12% for cash market transactions and 0.05% for derivatives transactions. Any payment towards brokerage and transaction cost, over and above the said 0.12% for cash market transactions and 0.05% in case of derivatives transactions may be charged to the scheme within the maximum limit of TER as prescribed under Regulation 52 (6) of the SEBI (MF) Regulations. Any expenditure in excess of the said prescribed limit shall be borne by the AMC/Trustees.

#### Service Tax:

In addition to the expenses under Regulation 52 (6) and (6A), AMC shall charge service tax as below:

. Service tax on investment and advisory fees will be charged to the Scheme in addition to the maximum limit of TER as prescribed in Regulation 52 (6).

- 2. Service tax on other than investment and advisory fees, if any, will be borne by the Scheme within the maximum limit of TER as prescribed in Regulation 52 (6).
- 3. Service tax on brokerage and transaction cost paid for execution of trade, if any, shall be within the limit prescribed under Regulation 52.
- 4. Service tax on exit load, if any, shall be paid out of the exit load proceeds and exit load net of service tax, if any, shall be credited to the Scheme

#### Notes:

- a. The Direct Plan and Options thereunder shall have a lower expense ratio excluding distribution expenses, commission, etc and no commission for distribution of Units will be paid / charged under Direct Plan of the Scheme.
- b. Fungibility of Maximum Permissible expense: The maximum Total Expense Ratio (TER) that can be charged to the Scheme will be subject to such limits as prescribed under the SEBI (MF) Regulations. The said maximum TER shall either be apportioned under various expense heads as enumerated in the table above, without any sub limit or allocated to any of the said expense head(s) at the discretion of AMC. Also, the types of expenses charged shall be as per the SEBI (MF) Regulations
- c. Investor Education and Awareness initiatives: As per Para F of the SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/21/2012 dated September 13, 2012, the AMC shall annually set apart at least 2 basis points p.a. (i.e. 0.02% p.a.) on daily net assets of the Scheme within the limits of total expenses prescribed under Regulation 52 of SEBI (MF) Regulations for investor education and awareness initiatives undertaken by the Fund.

The AMC may incur expenses on behalf of the Scheme which will be reimbursed on actual basis to the AMC to the extent such expenses are permissible & are within the prescribed SEBI limit. Subject to the SEBI Regulations and this Document, expenses over and above the prescribed ceiling will be borne by the AMC / Trustee.

The current expense ratios will be updated on the AMC's website viz. <u>www.edelweissmf.com</u> within two working days mentioning the effective date of the change.

The AMC may incur expenses on behalf of the Mutual Fund which can be reimbursed on actual basis to the AMC to the extent such expenses are permissible & are within the prescribed SEBI limit.

#### Illustration of impact of expense ratio on scheme's returns:

An illustration providing the impact of expense ratio on scheme return is provided below:

Particulars		
Units	а	5,00,00,000.00
Face value (in Rs.)	b	10.00
Unit Capital (in Rs.)	c=a*b	50,00,00,000.00
Portfolio at Cost (in Rs.)	d	50,00,00,000.00
Income on Investment (assumed rate 8.00% p.a.)	е	1,09,589.04
Total Portfolio value	f= d+e	50,01,09,589.04
NAV before charging expense ratio (In Rs. Per unit)	g=f/a	10.0022
Expense at per unit level (assumed expense ratio 2.25%	h	0.0006
p.a.)		
NAV after charging expense ratio (In Rs. Per unit)	I=g-h	10.0016
Returns p.a. without expense ratio for 1 day	J	8.00%
Returns p.a. with expense ratio for 1 day	k	5.75%
Difference in returns p.a.	l=j-k	2.25%

Details of the actual TER charged to the scheme after allotment would be available on the website of the Mutual Fund on <u>www.edelweissemf.com</u>.

#### C. LOAD STRUCTURE

The Load Structure would comprise of an Entry Load and /or an Exit Load, as may be permissible under the Regulations.

Type of Load	Load chargeable (as %age of NAV)
Entry*	N.A.
Exit **	Nil

\*No entry load will be charged for purchase / switch-in transaction(s) accepted by the Scheme. The upfront commission shall be paid by the investor directly to the ARN Holder based on the investor's assessment of various factors including service rendered by the ARN Holder.

\*\*The entire exit load (net of service tax), charged, if any, shall be credited to the Scheme.

AMC reserves the right to revise the load structure from time to time. Such changes will become effective prospectively from the date such changes are incorporated.

For any change in load structure AMC will issue an addendum and display it on the website/Investor Service Centres.

#### The investor is requested to check the prevailing load structure of the Scheme, before investing.

#### \* Changing the Load Structure:

Under the Scheme, AMC, in consultation with the Trustees, reserves the right to change the Load structure if it so deems fit in the interest of investors & for the smooth and efficient functioning of the Scheme. Any imposition or enhancement in the load shall be applicable on prospective investments only. At the time of changing the load structure, to avoid investor's complaints who invest without knowing the loads, the AMC shall issue a public notice in one English daily newspaper having nationwide circulation as well as in a newspaper published in the language of region where the Head Office of the Mutual Fund is situated. Unit Holders / Prospective investors will be informed of the changed / prevailing Load structures through various means of communication such as public notice and / or display at ISCs / Distributors' offices, on account statements, acknowledgements, investor newsletters etc. The addendum detailing the changes may be attached to Scheme Information Documents and Key Information Memorandum. The addendum may be circulated to all the distributors/brokers so that the same can be attached to all Scheme Information Documents and Key Information Memorandum already in stock. The introduction of the exit load along with the details may also be disclosed in the Account Statement issued after the introduction of such load.

#### D. TRANSACTION CHARGES

In accordance with SEBI circular no. Cir/ IMD/ DF/13/ 2011 dated August 22, 2011, the AMC will deduct Transaction Charges on purchase/subscription of Rs.10,000/- and above made through a valid ARN Holder i.e. AMFI Registered distributors/intermediaries, provided such distributor has opted to receive the Transaction Charges. Such Transaction Charges collected by the AMC will be paid to the ARN Holder in the following manner:

#### (i) For the First Time Investor in Mutual Funds (across all mutual funds):

Transaction Charge of Rs. 150/- for subscription of Rs. 10,000/- and above will be deducted from the subscription amount and paid to the distributor/agent of such First Time Investor and the balance amount will be invested.

#### (ii) For Investor other than First Time Mutual Fund Investor (existing investors in any mutual fund):

Transaction Charge of Rs. 100/- per subscription of Rs.10,000/- and above will be deducted from the subscription amount and paid to the distributor/agent of the investor and the balance amount will be invested.

#### (iii) No Transaction Charges shall be deducted:

- 1. where the ARN Holder/distributor of the investor has not opted to receive any Transaction Charges;
- 2. for purchases/subscriptions of an amount less than Rs. 10,000/-;
- 3. for transactions other than purchases/ subscriptions relating to new inflows such as Switches etc;
- 4. for purchases/subscriptions made directly with the Mutual Fund (i.e. not through any distributor);
- 5. for purchase/subscription routed through the Stock Exchange Platform.

Identification of investors as "first time" or "existing" will be based on Permanent Account Number (PAN) at the First/Sole Applicant/ Guardian level. Hence, Unit holders are urged to ensure that their PAN / KYC is updated with the Fund. Unit holders may approach any of the Official Points of Acceptances of the Fund in this regard.

The Account Statement / Consolidated Account Statement sent to the Unit holders shall clearly state the net investments as gross subscription less Transaction Charges and shall also show the number of units allotted against the net investments.

#### E. WAIVER OF LOAD FOR DIRECT APPLICATIONS

Not Applicable

#### V RIGHTS OF UNITHOLDERS

Please refer to SAI for details.

#### VI PENALTIES, PENDING LITIGATION OR PROCEEDINGS, FINDINGS OF INSPECTIONS OR INVESTIGATIONS FOR WHICH ACTION MAY HAVE BEEN TAKEN OR IS IN THE PROCESS OF BEING TAKEN BY ANY REGULATORY AUTHORITY

1. All disclosures regarding penalties and action(s) taken against foreign Sponsor(s) may be limited to the jurisdiction of the country where the principal activities (in terms of income / revenue) of the Sponsor(s) are carried out or where the headquarters of the Sponsor(s) is situated. Further, only top 10 monetary penalties during the last three years shall be disclosed. N.A

2. In case of Indian Sponsor(s), details of all monetary penalties imposed and/ or action taken during the last three years or pending with any financial regulatory body or governmental authority, against Sponsor(s) and/ or the AMC and/ or the Board of Trustees /Trustee Company; for irregularities or for violations in the financial services sector, or for defaults with respect to share holders or debenture holders and depositors, or for economic offences, or for violation of securities law. Details of settlement, if any, arrived at with the aforesaid authorities during the last three years shall also be disclosed. Nil

3. Details of all enforcement actions taken by SEBI in the last three years and/ or pending with SEBI for the violation of SEBI Act, 1992 and Rules and Regulations framed there under including debarment and/ or suspension and/ or cancellation and/ or imposition of monetary penalty/adjudication/enquiry proceedings, if any, to which the Sponsor(s) and/ or the AMC and/ or the Board of Trustees /Trustee Company and/ or any of the directors and/ or key personnel (especially the fund managers) of the AMC and Trustee Company were/ are a party. The details of the violation shall also be disclosed.

- In the matter of IPO of Electrosteel Steels Limited, Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, along with other Merchant Bankers have received an adjudication order dated March 31, 2016 from SEBI imposing penalty of Rs. 1,00,00,000/- on all the Merchant Bankers, which the Merchant Bankers are liable to pay jointly and severally.
- SEBI has passed an adjudication order dated November 28, 2014 in the matter of IPO of CARE Limited imposing penalty of Rs. 1,00,00,000/- on the Merchant Bankers, which the Merchant Bankers are liable to pay jointly and severally. Edelweiss Financial Services Limited along with other Merchant Bankers have fi led an Appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal against the Adjudicating order. The matter is currently pending.

4. Any pending material civil or criminal litigation incidental to the business of the Mutual Fund to which the Sponsor(s) and/ or the AMC and/ or the Board of Trustees /Trustee Company and/ or any of the directors and/ or key personnel are a party should also be disclosed separately. Nil

5. Any deficiency in the systems and operations of the sponsor(s) and/ or the AMC and/ or the Board of Trustees/Trustee Company which SEBI has specifically advised to be disclosed in the SID, or which has been notified by any other regulatory agency, shall be disclosed. Nil

#### Notes:

- 1. Further, any amendments / replacement / re-enactment of SEBI Regulations subsequent to the date of the Document shall prevail over those specified in this Document.
- 2. The Scheme under this Document was approved by the Board of Trustees on December 20, 2016.
- 3. The information contained in this Document regarding taxation is for general information purposes only and is in conformity with the relevant provisions of the Tax Act, and has been

included relying upon advice provided to the Fund's tax advisor based on the relevant provisions prevailing as at the currently applicable Laws.

4. Any dispute arising out of this issue shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts in India.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme Information Document the provisions of the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and the Guidelines there under shall be applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Sd/-

Radhika Gupta Chief Executive Officer

PLACE: Mumbai DATE: March 30, 2017

## **INVESTOR SERVICE CENTERS (ISC) / OFFICIAL POINT OF ACCEPTANCE (OPA)**

#### EDELWEISS ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED - ISC / OPA

Ahmedabad : Ground Floor, Madhusudan House, Opp. Shail Building, Near Girish Cold Drink Cross Road, Off CG Road, Navrangpura, Ahmadabad- 380 009

- Tel- 079-65141246 / 26461040 / 26461070 Bengaluru
  - : 427/14-1, 1st Floor, 9th Main Road, 5th Block, Jayanagar, Bengaluru 560041, Karnataka Tel- 080-69001508
- Chandigarh : Cabin No. 19 , 2nd Floor of Meeting point, SCO 487-488, Sector 35-C, Chandigarh- 160035 Tel- 0172-5086890 / 2603771
- Chennai : No. 40, 3rd Floor, North Wing, Bazullah Road, T. Nagar, Chennai – 600017
- Delhi : 104,1st Floor, Mercantile House, 15 Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi – 110001 Tel- 011- 4357 1105
- Indore : 312-313, D.M. Tower, Third Floor, Race Course Road, Indore, Madhya Pradesh - 452001 Tel- 0731 6701522
- Kolkata : Savitri Tower, 2nd Floor, 3A Upper Wood Street, Kolkata- 700017 Tel- 033- 4421 8800
- Lucknow : Cabin No. 102, A Small Store Trade Point, Ground Floor, Saran Chamber-1, 5-Park Road, Hazratgunj, Lucknow- 226001 Tel- 0522-4070679
- Mumbai : Tower 3, Wing B, Ground Floor, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla(W), Mumbai-400070. Maharashtra. Tel- 022 4097 9900 / 4097 9821

